MINUTES
of the

COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
APRIL 7, 2006
THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF
HAWAII, WAS HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING,
WAILUKU, HAWAII, ON FRIDAY, APRIL 7, 2006, BEGINNING AT 9:04 A.M. WITH CHAIR
G. RIKI HOKAMA PRESIDING.
CHAIR: The Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of 7 April 2006 shall come to
order.
Mr. Clerk, please call the roll.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS MICHELLE ANDERSON, JO ANNE
JOHNSON, DAIN P. KANE. DENNIS A. MATEO, JOSEPH
PONTANILLA, CHARMA1NE TAVARES, AND CHAIR G. RIKI
HOKAMA.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER MICHAEL J. MOLINA AND VICE-CHAIR
ROBERT CARROLL.
(Councilmember Molina and Vice-Chair Carroll were not present when the roll was
called; however, they arrived during the testimony portion of the meeting.)
COUNTY CLERK ROY T. HIRAGA: Mr. Chairman, seven members are present, two are
excused. A quorum of the Council is present to conduct business.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Before we, I recognize Mr. Kane for the opening remarks, I will just ask everyone in
the chamber to please turn your phones off or your pagers off to help us ensure the
decorum of these chambers.
With that, Mr. Kane, your opening remarks please.
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OPENING REMARKS
The opening remarks were presented by Councilmember Kane.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Members of the Council, and others in attendance, rose and recited the
Pledge of Allegiance.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you once again, Mr. Kane.
Members of our gallery, good morning. Welcome to the chambers of your Council.
Mr. Clerk, proceed with the agenda, please.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, no one has signed up to testify on any ceremonial resolutions.
Shall we proceed?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Prior to proceeding, Mr. Clerk, we have four ceremonial resolutions
before the body this morning. Is there anyone wishing to give testimony before the
Members before the body takes up action on these considerations? Seeing none,
Members, with no objections, testimony on ceremonial resolutions shall be closed.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered.
Mr. Clerk.
The following ceremonial resolutions were presented.

CEREMONIAL RESOLUTIONS
RESOLUTION
NO. 06-24
CONGRATULATING THE NATIONAL 4-H
CONGRESSIONAL DELEGATES FROM MAUI
COUNTY FOR BEING SELECTED AS HAWAII
DELEGATES TO THE 84TH NATIONAL 4-H
CONGRESS
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, MOVE TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION
CONGRATULATING THE 4-H CONGRESSIONAL DELEGATES.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt the
resolution. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
If the, the Clerk can read the resolution throughout, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It's an honor this morning to bring forward this resolution and ask for the Members'
support. Every year, this group is out there bumping and grinding in their daily lives
and trying to figure out ways to contribute back to the community. And this group, the
4-H group is no exception. They, they have a tremendous amount of support from
the community, and we felt it was very important to bring them forward, honor them,
and continue to encourage them to bring back ideas, not only take ideas to the, to the
Nation at their conference, but come back with ideas and share among themselves
and bring back into their community. Things that we do, Members, going out and
coming back and doing things with the interaction.
So it's real, it's real good to see these young ladies that are behind us this morning.
And I'm hoping that they will prepare themselves, at least one of 'em, on behalf of all
of them, to come forward this morning and share a few comments with us at the
appropriate time.
So Members and Chair, I ask for your support of the resolution.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Any further discussion on the motion before you, Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I would like to also congratulate the 4-Hers.
Many years ago when I was a member of 4-H, I think it really helped me to be
grounded and also just to participate at a rather young age in a lot of the things that
4-H has to offer, not only the animal programs, but homemaking and different
competitive situations. And living in a rural community as I did, I think it helped me to
build my values and rely on other people to really reach goals and objectives that we
all had. So, to me, it's character building. It's so much more than what it used to be.
And I really congratulate the youth and I encourage their parents to, to continue to
support this organization and the youth leaders and members of 4-H because like so
many things with our changing environment and with the rural character of our own
islands changing, we really need to support organizations that do support and hold
together our community; and this is one of them.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, PONTANILLA, TAVARES, AND
CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA AND VICE-CHAIR
CARROLL.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
If we can invite these young ladies who have been honored this morning forward to
be recognized.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ladies, if you would please join us.
Mr. Kane, if you would please.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We, I think got the consensus that a few of the young ladies will be speaking, and I
believe first we're going to have Ms. Amanda Van Scoy from Seabury Hall Come up
and I'll allow her to introduce the young ladies and, of course, introduce the second
speaker. So without any further ado, our 4-H delegates.
MS. AMANDA VAN SCOY: Good morning. My name is Amanda Van Scoy, and I have
been in 4-H for about four years now. The many experiences I've had in 4-H have
really helped me a lot in school and even in life. It's expanded my horizons and
taught me about taking action and giving back to the community. My most
memorable experience so far has been attending the National 4-H Congress.
The Maui 4-H organization has over thirty 4-H Clubs, numbering over 300 youths
from kindergarten to twelfth grade on the island of Maui and Molokai. Each 4-H Club
has a volunteer adult leader who shares their knowledge and leadership with the
members. Entire families get involved with club projects and the Maui County 4-H
events that we participate in each year.
4-H projects are filled with fun and engaging activities where youths can learn by
doing with hands-on experiences. If you're still thinking of 4-H as just working with
livestock, I'm sorry to inform you that today's 4-H has much more to offer. Our
curriculum ranges from A to Z: aerospace, animals, arts, computers,
entrepreneurships, foods, forestry, gardening, healthy lifestyles, service learning,
sewing, woodworking, and zoology.
Through national and local grants received, we have been able to have our 4-H
program form youth and adult partnerships to collaborate with the community. Our
4-H program now does a weekly 4-H after-school program at Waihee Elementary
School and uses our curriculum materials with the A-Plus Youth.
Maui 4-H Clubs also volunteer and organize a one-day kindergarten camp for young
children first starting school. We are also concluding an ATV Safety Awareness
Program, and assisted with childcare for the National Guard families.
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The Maui 4-H organization has been named a recipient of a $30,000 Building
Wonder in Science and Math grant funded by the Toyota U.S.A. Foundation where
high school students get to interact with intermediate school students involved in
hands-on science activities. 4-H'ers are constantly striving to make the best better
and make a difference in our community.
Thank you for your time.
And now Tiffany Lorenzo will talk about our experiences that we went through at the
National 4-H Congress.
MS. TIFFANY LORENZO: Okay, In November, we were fortunate enough to attend the
2005 National 4-H Congress. Some highlights of our trip were performing the hula,
"Hano Hano 0 Maui" to all 1,200 Congress delegates; listening to inspirational
speakers; and participating in interesting workshops. We also went out into the
community to do service projects. Some of the delegates went to the intermediate
schools to help children decorate their Christmas trees, and even helped move
furniture in a warehouse.
Through our experiences, we learned to challenge and motivate ourselves and to
make good choices in life. During the convention, we got the opportunity to meet
fellow 4-H'ers from across the Nation and also in Puerto Rico. All the people we met
had different lifestyles and perceptions of life in Hawaii. The questions they asked us
were surprising. Some people thought we lived in grass shacks and dance hula for a
living. But we felt like celebrities when complete strangers came up to us to take
pictures. Our trip to Atlanta for the National 4-H Congress was both fun and a great
learning experience.
We would like to thank the 4-H organization, our club leaders and families, and the
people of Maui for helping us get to Atlanta where we had experience which will
change our lives forever. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chairman. And we wanted to take this opportunity,
of course, to thank their, their leader, Ms. Yap, as well as with the parents who
support, support these young ladies.
So with that, subject to your call, Mr. Chair, the, the, the young ladies are asking that
they can have a picture with that big seal behind them taken. So it's to your
discretion, Chair, but thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, the Chair will honor the request made by the ten young ladies.
The Council will be in recess subject to the call of the Chair.
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(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 9:22 A.M., AND WAS

RECONVENED AT 9:25 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT EXCEPT
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, BOTH EXCUSED.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Council meeting of 7 April 2006 shall return to order.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, that was RESOLUTION 06-24.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
The following proposed resolution was presented.
RESOLUTION
NO.
CONGRATULATING DAMIEN FARIAS, SR. AS
HAWAII'S DEALER OF THE YEAR FOR 2006 AND
NOMINEE FOR THE 2006 TIME MAGAZINE QUALITY
DEALER OF THE YEAR AWARD BY THE HAWAII
AUTOMOBILE DEALERS ASSOCIATION
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, your Chair is requesting, with no objections, to the end of the calendar two
of the remaining three ceremonial resolutions, the resolution just read by the Clerk,
as well as the last ceremonial resolution extending condolences to the family of the
late Margaret Inouye. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered; end of calendar.
Mr. Clerk.
RESOLUTION
NO. 06-25
RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2006 AS
COMMUNITY ACTION MONTH IN MAUI COUNTY
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MOVE TO ADOPT, ON YOUR BEHALF, THE RESOLUTION
RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2006 AS COMMUNITY
ACTION MONTH IN THE COUNTY OF MAUI.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
the resolution. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, if we can have the resolution read throughout by our
Clerk.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
On your behalf, I ask the Members to support this resolution.
Forty-two years have gone by since our President, Lyndon B. Johnson, brought
forward this action; and the legacy continues and it's alive and well here in the
County of Maui. Maui Economic Opportunity continues to strive for the mission to
help end poverty right here in this County, as well as their part of that role across the
Nation.
So with that, obviously, with the language in the resolution, their reach is very much a
part of this community; and it's very much appreciated. So we're here today to honor
them, as well as any other group out there that plays the role to end poverty here in
our County and across the, the, the country.
Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kane.
Any further discussion, Members? The Chair then will just add a few comments of
his own.
I have been privileged to personally been associated with this organization called
Maui Economic Opportunity for more than twenty-five years. Gosh, twenty-five
years. But I can tell you that this organization, through the leadership of Joe Souki at
the beginning, then carried on through Gladys Baisa, and now under the leadership
of Sandy Baz, continues to show our County, our residents, that there is issues and
challenges in our community regarding poverty.
And while MEO has had many successes and triumphs over the challenges that
poverty brings to disadvantaged people, to our young people, to our seniors, we still
hear today forty-one, forty-two years, as Mr. Kane has mentioned, there are new
challenges regarding poverty, homelessness, whether it affects--and continues to
affect our young and our old. It is our continued responsibility to be not only good
stewards, but good Samaritans, good neighbors, just good people to one another to
continue to do this fight that must be won not only in our County, but, hopefully, our
efforts can show and share outside of our own country's borders.
Hunger and homelessness is not an American issue. It is a world issue. And we
cannot forget there are those, many who do not have even the opportunity of
services to be provided to them; food to nourish them; health care to, to take care of
their needs both physically and spiritually.
So I share these comments with you, Members, because the war needs to be won,
and we cannot let down our vigilance and our efforts to continue to strive for a better
community, a better mankind.
So stating that, Members, thank you for letting me share my few thoughts with you
this morning.
Any further discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, PONTANILLA, TAVARES, AND
CHAIR HOKAMA.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA AND VICE-CHAIR
CARROLL.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
At this time, we would like to invite Mr. Baz, Mr. Vicens, Ms. McNeff, Ms. Fujiwara,
Ms. Balsa, and all others of the MED family that would like to join us on the chamber
floors, please.
Excuse me for the interruption, Members, ladies and gentlemen.
Thank you. Mr. Kane, I would appreciate if you would please introduce our, I guess
the current head of the organization.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I'd like to take this opportunity to introduce Sandy Baz who is our Executive Director
for Maui Economic Opportunity, and I'll let him do the honors of introducing the folks
that are joining him this morning. Mr. Baz.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. SANDY BAZ: Council Chair Hokama, Members of the Maui County Council, aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha.
MR. BAZ: Each spring, Maui Economic Opportunity and agencies like ours across the
United States celebrate Community Action Month. On Maui, we recognize four
decades of unceasing effort to serve the needy since March 22, 1965, when MEO
was chartered as part of the implementation of the Economic Opportunity Act.
Because we are a community action agency, we live and breathe the promise of
community action which says: "Community action changes people's lives, embodies
the spirit of hope, improves communities, and makes America a better place to live.
We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to helping people help
themselves and each other."
We acknowledge our many successes over the years in providing services that takes
some of the sting out of poverty. We look to MEO's record and know that in some
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cases, the hand up we have provide has meant the end of poverty for many local
families.
I would like to acknowledge a warrior who is with us today that spent thirty-six years
of her professional life fighting to end poverty for Maui's families, MEO's Executive
Director emeritus, Ms. Gladys Baisa.
It is never comfortable to think of poverty, and it is even more distasteful to think of
the effects of poverty on families living in Maui in what most people think of as
paradise and the best island in the world for five hundred years running.
Chair, as you know, community action is a matrix of services intent on creating
self-sufficiency, personal responsibility, hard work, and discipline. Support of the
community is essential and perm--permanently breaking the grasp of poverty on our
friends, families, and neighbors.
MEO's record of service and its stories of success are really achieved by many
partnerships, with government bodies such as yourself, and social service
organizations within the business community and private citizens.
Please join us again on Tuesday, May 2, at a major forum on poverty--and call MEO
for more information.
Chair and Members, I would like to also acknowledge today the incredible support
and partnership that you have committed in this fight. Without your continued efforts
to fund these much needed services for our community, our labors would be fruitless.
So I, the staff, the Board, the volunteers, and the community say mahalo and keep it
up.
Mr. Chair, I'd like to call up the Chair of MEO's Board, Mr. "Chubby" Vicens.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please.
MR. MERCER "CHUBBY" VICENS: Chairman Hokama, Members of the Council. Mahalo.
Every day of our lives, we, at MEO, feel that we're blessed. We're blessed for the
opportunity to help people change lives.
It seems like the impossible dream that we can get rid of poverty, we can get rid of
homelessness, we can change people's lives. But the reality is it can be done, but it
cannot be done without your support. Not only does the Council and the
Administration support us monetarily, but there are members of this group that sit on
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the Board that take time to come out and listen, and help us be better tomorrow than

we are today.
The staff at MED is unbelievable. I've worked with lots of Boards and lots of staffs,
but these people they don't have an individual agenda. They look at the community
and you say "Go", and they go; and they accomplish phenomenal things.
But, again, it could not happen without your support and the leadership of an
absolutely wonderful lady who may be small in stature, but, boy, I tell you, she casts
a huge, huge shadow for all of us at MED. And I'd like to introduce her now after I
thank you again for your support, your indulgence with us, and your partnership.
Thank you.
Gladys Baisa.
MS. GLADYS BAISA: Good morning, Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BAISA: Chair Hokama, who I've had the pleasure of working very closely with for
many, many years.
It's a big honor for me to be here to see what's happening. Forty-one years of MED,
"Helping People. Changing Lives." Forty-one years of a partnership with local
government, State government, and the Federal government. I'd like to thank you,
thank you very, very much for helping MED do what we do. We can't do it without
you.
Everything takes money, but then it's more than money. It's all of the resources that
you make available. It's the participation of Councilmembers on the Board, and the
aloha that is shown to us every time that MED comes to the Council for help. I want
to thank you very, very much. I'd also like to thank the Administration that works with
you.
You know, when I was getting ready to leave MEO, everybody kept saying, "What's
going to happen to MEO?" I want us to stop saying the "new" Executive Director of
MEO, and start thinking of Sandy Baz as the "Director" of MEO. In the last five
months, he has certainly proven to me and the community that not only was he ready
to take over, but that he has.
Sandy, Board Members, staff members, I congratulate you. The legacy lives on.
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And Councilmembers and the community of Maui at large, I urge and beg you to
continue to support MEO. Your money will be well spent and our community will be
better for it.
Thank you very much for the privilege of having served as MEO's Executive Director
for so many years. I can now move on and be a supporting character and watch the
magic. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Sandy, Mr. Director; Mr. Vicens, Chairman of the
Board; and all of you from MEO. We thank you very much for your efforts to make
our community a better place. Thank you for being here this morning.
Thank you very much, Mr. Kane, for doing the honors.
Mr. Clerk, shall we proceed with the agenda, please.
COUNTY CLERK: Yes, Mr. Chairman. For the record, that was RESOLUTION 06-25.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we have received three requests from individuals who
have signed up prior to the convening of the meeting that wish to testify at today's
meeting. Shall we proceed?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Prior to proceeding with testimony on items of the posted agenda for the
seventh of April, 2006, the Chair will inform those wishing to provide comment today
that you have three minutes to share your thoughts with us. Please state your name.
If you are representing an organization, that you also share that information with us
and in what capacity.
I will assist you with your three minutes. When you speak, our green light on the
podium will go on. At the two-minute thirty-second mark, the yellow light will go on,
which will hopefully help you know that you have thirty seconds before your
three-minute mark; and then at the three-minute mark, the red light will go on at the
podium and then the Chair will ask you to conclude your comments.
If you should have additional comments that you wish to provide, the Chair will hap-be happy to offer you an additional three minutes after all others have spoken.
Stating that, Mr. Clerk, if you will please call our first testifier.
COUNTY CLERK: Our first testifier is Denise Grace, offering testimony on Committee
Report 06-41. She'll be followed by Wayne Arakaki.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
(Vice-Chair Carroll arrived at the meeting at this time.)

PRESENTATION OF WRITTEN OR ORAL TESTIMONY
MS. DENISE GRACE (testifying on Committee Report No. 06-41):
Good morning, Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. GRACE: I am here this morning in regards to file 06-41, the Ainakula project.
My husband I have purchased a, a property in that Ainakula Subdivision in November
of 2005. Since then, we have applied to, for a permit to build our home which has
been approved by the permit department, however, they will not release it to us
pending completion of the infrastructure.
We had written documentation from our seller at the time of the purchase of our
property that the infrastructure was to be completed in sixty days, which would have
meant the end of January 2006.
We have attempted to uncover the problem as to why this infrastructure has not been
completed, and have been informed that part of the problem lies with two utility poles
that are near this project. I have spoken with the Councilmember Pontanilla, and
have--was informed that he has since spoken to Maui Electric, the telephone
company, and the cable company which have to be notified with the moving of these
poles.
So we have obtained a construction loan, which you may be familiar with, is under a
time deadline. And if our home is not completed within this timeline, they will assess
a hefty penalty towards us. And it is my request that I'm--why I'm here today that
Maui Council move towards expediting this process so as not to further complications
with our construction loan.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Ms. Grace.
May I ask if you would please just state your name for the record.
MS. GRACE: Denise Grace.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, any questions for our testifier, Ms. Grace, on her comments?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much for being here today.
Just a question with regard to the seller of the property. Was this just a single
individual or a developer?
MS. GRACE: It was originally a big parcel of land that was divided into seven, seven par-half-acre lots, with the original owner, I think, believe is on one; and so the other six
were sold and we purchased one of those.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you bought from an individual, you know, with
just the property as is. Is that correct?
MS. GRACE: Correct. Urn-hum.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And what were the representations made by the individual
who sold you the property? I, I know you described some of them, but I'm trying to
get clear in my mind, was there any requirement for them to perform certain things so
that you would have legal recourse?
MS. GRACE: Well, can I read you this? All right. "The buyer," which was us, "is aware that
the Yokote subdivision is a new development, and infrastructure with underground
utility has not been completed." This is dated November 2005. The update of today
is sixty day, more days. "GS Construction is waiting on the engineer to provide the
boundary and elevation information for the electrical boxes so that they can do the
electrical from the top to the bottom of the development per MECo's instruction. We
are working with Wayne Arakaki who is the engineer for the development to comply
with their request. After completion, the developer plans to dedicate the road to the
County of Maui. The subdivision project is fully bonded, and the County of Maui is
holding the cash funds for the entire estimated cost of the project based on the
contractor's bid."
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. GRACE: So that is the information we received.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And in there, I heard you state "underground
utilities."
MS. GRACE: Um-hum. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so, I guess my question would be that if it was
represented to you by the seller that there were to be underground utilities, was there
ever a point in time where it was explained that you would not have underground
utilities and that power poles would actually be aboveground utilities?
MS. GRACE: What was told to us was that it had ori--the original idea was to have them
above, and then somewhere along the way, they decided to put it under. I guess
you'd have to ask that question to the engineer. But that's, that was our
understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, further questions to Ms. Grace on her testimony? Having
none, thank you very much for your testimony.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Wayne Arakaki will be offering testimony on Committee Report 06-41,
followed by Wayne Shimizu.

MR. WAYNE ARAKAKI; WAYNE I. ARAKAKI ENGINEER, LLC (testifying on Committee
Report No. 06-41):
Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Councilmembers.
My name is Wayne Arakaki, and I'm one of the engineers for the project. I'm a civil
engineer that did the work for the subdivision.
On the electrical portion, I want to explain that it's done by another company. I am
just the civil that did the work--waterline and grading.
I have offered a, a handout that you folks have. What I wanted to point out was that
we obtained final subdivision approval on November 19, 2004; and the owners, Mr.
and Mrs. Yokote, had to put a cashier's check of $291,234 to the County in order to
get this approved.
On the second page, the subdivision was processed through various departments.
Noted would be like building department, engineering, Planning Department, Water
Supply, Police Department, Parks and Recreation, State Health, and also Maui
Electric in order to get this approved
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On the last page, what I did was 1, I reconstructed a profile. It's, it's on the last page
here. One of the requirements is to place trees to fulfill the requirements of
landscaping. And I, I chose Tulipwood for this area. And, you know, after it matures,
the tree is going to be anywhere from 60 to 80 feet high. On the left-hand corner, I
kinda indicated what the power pole height would be, which is about 45 feet. And on
the very top on the right side, it, it's the maximum house height of 30 feet. That's on
the, on the top property, Lot 126-A-1-D.
On the previous page, there's a zoning fact sheet that shows what is the maximum
height of a house and also the setbacks that is required.
The subdivision is, has underground power. The, the overhead power that we're
talking about is along Ainakula Road, which has overhead power along that road.
And we, what we're going to do is bring service into the subdivision; but, in the
subdivision, it is all underground. We haven't changed from that. So just to, for your
folks understanding.
I have also included the landscaping approval letter.
And, finally, "Why did we put the road there?" I have a letter dated July 31, 2004,
that was signed by the Director stating that, you know, the, the driveway was
acceptable at that location for the subdivision.
That's all I have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakaki.
Members, any questions for Mr. Arakaki this morning? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me. Thank you, Chair.
Mr. Arakaki, thank you very much for being here this morning and, and for providing
this schematic. It's very helpful.
Do you know of any other requirements that need to be finalized before the
subdivision, or before the owners within the subdivision can begin building?
MR. ARAKAKI: Right now, as far as the status of the project, the waterline is in place. The
electrical has to be installed. But it's my understanding that the contractor has
excavated but they still have yet to install the underground power, and they also have
to do road paving, and also the landscaping, and also some improvements on
Ainakula Road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that's a lot of stuff that still needs to be done.
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MR. ARAKAKI: Based on the contractor and, you know, it's not coming from me, he told me

that once given the green light for whatever reason, that it's between him and the
owner, he said he'll get it done in thirty days.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they have to do the under grounding that these poles
are going to come off of.
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they have to do paving.
It says that they're required to, they have to improve the entire length of Kimo Drive
between Ainakula Road and Haleakala Highway to a minimum width of 20 feet.
MR. ARAKAKI: What we did was we, while we're doing the survey work and we're doing
the design work, a lot of the neighbors were against widening the road. So what the
Director chose instead is that the owner had to pay the County $30,000 in lieu of
improving Kimo Drive.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that like a deferred payment or just a payment in lieu
of?
MR. ARAKAKI: It, it was a payment that was made in order to get final approval. So that
payment was made.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well that contradicts the letter we have. But I'm
assuming that was done after.
MR. ARAKAKI: It was done before we got final approval. That was one of the
requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: To pay the $30,000 you mean?
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes, which the owner did with a cashier's check.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So how much time would you anticipate all these other
improvements that need to be-MR. ARAKAKI: I'm not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --done before they could start building?
MR. ARAKAKI: You know, I'm, I'm just the middle person. I'm not the contractor.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ARAKAKI: But he promised me it's thirty days he's going to get it done.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thirty days he's going to get it all done?
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes, that's what he told me.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakaki.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Could you refresh my memory, because I've looked
through this and it doesn't state what the zoning is.
MR. ARAKAKI: The zoning is rural half acre.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. There, because this is more than three lots, there
was no deferral agreement that was entered into. Is that correct?
MR. ARAKAKI: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And the roadway, Ainakula, that is a County road
or a private road?
MR. ARAKAKI: That's a County road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: County road. So it--and that was why you were being
asked to make the contributions to improve that roadway?
MR. ARAKAKI: We--no. The road fronting Ainakula Road has to be improved, okay. That's
one portion. But there is another County ordinance saying that from the project site
to the highway, if it's less than 20 feet, we also have to be responsible in improving it
to 20 feet wide.
And as 1 said earlier, that the neighbors were very upset in, you know, increasing the
pavement width because that would just incur more additional traffic. So we worked
it out where the County just took the $30,000, and they were going to use that for
some other, you know, road improvements elsewhere, I guess, or when it becomes
appropriate to improve Kimo Drive. So Ainakula Road will be improved fronting the
subdivision.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to the trees that are going to be
placed along the road.
MR. ARAKAKI: The trees are placed within the subdivision, of the subdivision road. It's not
placed on Ainakula Road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So will they be on the same side as the utility poles
or on the opposite side of where the utility poles will be?
MR. ARAKAKI: I, I, that, I don't know. 1, you know, as I said, I'm not the electrical engineer,
I'm just the civil, the civil engineer on this project, but.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I'll, try and get that information, but the, the
only reason I'm asking is because the tree heights would be a substantial
interference with any overhead lines and we have this problem throughout Maui
County. So I just wondered why, you know, they were such high tree heights. But
I'll, try and get the information to see if they're on the same side or the opposite
side.
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes. You know, as far as the tree locations and all that, you know, again, it
goes back to the Planning Department. You know, we have no control. You know,
we suggest certain locations, but, you know, they always tell us to change it, so. And
then, again, the landscaping plan was approved by the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further questions for Mr. Arakaki this morning?
Thank you very much for being here. We appreciate it.
MR. ARAKAKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK:
Report 06-41.

Our last testifier is Wayne Shimizu, testifying on Committee

CHAIR HOKAMA: Before Mr. Shimizu starts his testimony, is there anyone else wishing to
provide testimony on any item agendized for today's meeting, please make yourself
known and we will be happy to provide you with your opportunity.
Mr. Shimizu, good morning.
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MR. WAYNE SHIMIZU (testifying on Committee Report No. 06-41):
Good morning, Council Chair Hokama and Members of the Council.
My name is Wayne Shimizu, and I'm here to testify on Public Works Committee
Report 06-41, recommending Council approval to authorize Maui Electric Company
to replace one 40-foot utility pole with two 45-foot poles on Ainakula Road in Kula.
I was born and raised on Maui and have lived Upcountry all of my life. For the past
twenty-five years, my wife Diane and I, my two sons, lived in Pukalani, but we had
always wanted to move to Kula. Last March, we found a parcel in a small seven-lot
subdivision on Ainakula Road. At the time, the seller's realtor informed us that the
subdivision would be completed in May. With that promise, we sold our home in
Pukalani, and it has been almost a year since we purchased the property, and we are
still waiting for the subdivision to be completed.
I've heard people's concern that the poles will obstruct their views, that the neighbors
were not notified about the poles, and that the area should have remained a
carnation farm.
I would like to respond to these concerns. First, regarding obstruction of view plane,
attached to my testimonies are pictures of the subdivision and the surrounding area.
The views looking down from the subdivision face Maalaea, West Maui Mountains,
and Kahului Harbor. But the views are not clear and unobstructed. There are existing
homes below Ainakula Road and many tall trees and vegetation. The new poles will
be installed at the lowest point of the subdivision, and one pole will particularly impact
the views from my lot. I would love to have a clear and open view myself, but it's a
sacrifice my family will have to make so that we can get electrical service. Is it fair to
delay this request and punish me and the other families who purchased these lots in
good faith because a utility pole may interfere with the view plane?
Secondly, regarding the issue of public notice, the project is a small seven-lot
subdivision, and there is no existing County requirement that the developer notify
surrounding neighbors. If the public notice is desired, then the Public Works
Department should establish policies and require the developer to notify the
neighbors early in the process before construction plans are approved by Maui
Electric and the County. A view plane analysis and a request for notification should
not be required now after the lots have been sold. The impact of delaying this
request will cause greater harm to the buyers than the utility pole will harm the view
plane.
Lastly, we thank Mr. Yokote for subdividing his property when he could not continue
to farm. This property is classified as Urban by the State, community planned for
rural zone--rural use, and zoned rural half-acre. Therefore, low density residential
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development is appropriate. Mr. Yokote received final subdivision approval and has
complied with all the conditions imposed by the County. And I urge the Council to
adopt Committee Report 6-041 [sic].
Thank you.
(Councilmember Molina arrived at the meeting at 10:02 a.m.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, any questions to Mr. Shimizu on his testimony this morning? Having none,
thank you very much for your-MR. SHIMIZU: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --your being here.
Okay, Mr. Clerk, do we have any further requests for testimony this morning?
COUNTY CLERK: No, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Shimizu was the last individual who signed up to
offer testimony.
However, we have, you have received written testimony from Wayne Arakaki, Wayne
Shimizu, the Director of Public Works, and Zessica Apiki, and copies have been duly
distributed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, with no objections, we shall receive written testimony as provided for
today's agenda items.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered.
With no further requests for oral testimony, Members, the Chair, with no objections,
shall be closing public testimony for today's regular meeting.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered.
Mr. Clerk, shall we proceed with the agenda, please.
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THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART
OF THE RECORD OF THIS MEETING:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Wayne Arakaki, Wayne Arakaki Engineer, LLC;
Wayne Shimizu;
Milton M. Arakawa, A.I.C.P,
Director of Public Works and Environmental
Management; and
Zessica L. M. Aipiki, Molokai General Plan Advisory
Committee Member

The following committee reports were presented.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO. 06-42 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That County Communication No. 04-289, from the Director of Finance,
transmitting the Finance Director's Quarterly Report and the Capital
Improvement Project Report for Fiscal Year July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (as
of September 30, 2004), be FILED;

2.

That County Communication No. 05-14, from the Deputy Director of Finance,
correcting an error in County Communication No. 04-289, be FILED;

3.

That County Communication No. 05-83, from the Director of Finance,
transmitting the Finance Director's Quarterly Report and the Capital
Improvement Project Report for Fiscal Year July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (as
of December 31, 2004), be FILED;

4.

That County Communication No. 05-201, from the Director of Finance,
transmitting the Finance Director's Quarterly Report and the Capital
Improvement Project Report for Fiscal Year July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (as
of March 31, 2005), be FILED;

5.

That County Communication No. 05-307, from the Director of Finance,
transmitting the Finance Director's Quarterly Report and the Capital
Improvement Project Report for Fiscal Year July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (as
of June 30, 2005), be FILED;
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6.

That County Communication No. 05-373, from the Director of Finance,
transmitting the Finance Directors Quarterly Report and the Capital
Improvement Project Report for Fiscal Year July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2006 (as
of September 30, 2005), be FILED; and

7.

That County Communication No. 06-47, from the Director of Finance,
transmitting the Finance Director's Quarterly Report and the Capital
Improvement Project Report for Fiscal Year July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2006 (as
of December 31, 2005), be FILED,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO ADOPT COMMITTEE REPORT 06-42.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to adopt
Committee Report 06-42. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.
Section 8-4.3(14) of the Revised Charter of the County of Maui (1983), as amended,
states that the Director of Finance shall for:
Each quarter submit through the mayor to the council a statement
of the revenues and expenditures for the preceding quarter and for
the fiscal year up to and including the preceding quarter. Such
statement shall be sufficiently detailed as to appropriations,
allotments and funds to show the exact financial condition of the
county and of each of its agencies and executive departments.

Your Committee was concerned about the accuracy and content of the Quarterly
Reports and the Capital Improvement Project Reports. Your Committee was
concerned that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year 2005
has not been completed and noted that the CAFR provides financial information that
should be considered in crafting the County's Fiscal Year 2007 Budget.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? If not, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA, TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-43

- BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That County Communication No. 05-64, from the Budget Director, transmitting
the "FISCAL YEAR 2005 - SECOND QUARTER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS IMPLEMENTATION REPORT", as of December 31, 2004, be
FILED;

2.

That County Communication No. 05-177, from the Budget Director,
transmitting the "FISCAL YEAR 2005 - THIRD QUARTER CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IMPLEMENTATION REPORT", as of March 31,
2005, be FILED;

3.

That County Communication No. 05-302, from the Budget Director,
transmitting the "FISCAL YEAR 2005 - FOURTH QUARTER CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IMPLEMENTATION REPORT", as of June 30,
2005, be FILED;

4.

That County Communication No. 05-374, from the Budget Director,
transmitting the "FISCAL YEAR 2006 - FIRST QUARTER CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IMPLEMENTATION REPORT", as of
September 30, 2005, be FILED; and
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5.

That County Communication No. 06-46, from the Budget Director, transmitting
the "FISCAL YEAR 2006 - SECOND QUARTER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS IMPLEMENTATION REPORT", as of December 31, 2005, be
FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, MOVE TO ADOPT COMMITTEE REPORT 06-43.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to adopt
Committee Report 06-43. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, Members.
Your Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Projects Implementation Reports
as part of its oversight responsibilities over County operations. Your Committee
questioned why some of the remarks included in the "Remarks" section of the report
are inconsistent with the actual status of the projects.
Your Committee expressed concern that the Council is not provided the detailed
information required to properly evaluate the County's capital improvement projects,
and provided the Budget Director with recommendations on how to revise the report.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 27

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "n
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-44

- BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO.
06-26 , entitled "AUTHORIZING THE
ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT OF FUNDS FROM HAWAII TOURISM
AUTHORITY RELATING TO THE MAALAEA HARBOR SEWAGE PUMP OUT
PROGRAM", be ADOPTED;

2.

That BILL NO. 19 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING APPENDIX A OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2006 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO THE OFFICE OF THE MAYOR", be
PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT; and

3.

That County Communication No. 06-66, from the Budget Director, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, MOVE TO ADOPT COMMITTEE REPORT 06-44.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to adopt
Committee Report 06-44. Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.
The committee report, as the Clerk stated, contains a resolution as well as a bill.
First, the purpose of the proposed resolution is to authorize acceptance of a $60,000
grant from the Hawaii Tourism Authority, as we know is, as the HTA. The Committee
notes that the HTA is the State agency established by Act 156 of the 1988 as the
lead advocate for Hawaii's tourism.
The purpose of the proposed bill contained within the committee report is to
appropriate the $60,000 for the Maalaea Harbor Sewage Pump Out Program. The
Maalaea Harbor Sewage Pump out Program is a pollution mitigation effort organized
by the Tri-Isle Resource Conservation & Development Council, we know as Tri-Isle
RC&D, a Federal rural-development agency. Under the program, the Tri-Isle RC&D
works with Maalaea Harbor boat operators and the County to facilitate
environmentally sensitive sewage disposal.
Your Committee commended the HTA for providing grant funds and requested that
the Chair of your Committee send a letter of appreciation to the HTA.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION 06-26 and BILL NO. 19.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-45

- BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That BILL NO. 20 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2006 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO ESTIMATED REVENUES, THE DEPARTMENT
OF WATER SUPPLY, TOTAL OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS, AND TOTAL
APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS)", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO
PRINT; and

2.

That County Communication No. 06-50, from the Budget Director, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, MOVE TO ADOPT COMMITTEE REPORT 06-45.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to adopt
Committee Report 06-45. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The purpose of the proposed bill is to provide an additional appropriation of $2 million
in the Plants Operations Program because of increase increased electrical cost
required to pump water from underground water sources.
This bill also corrects an error in the Fiscal Year '06 Budget by revising the grant to
"The Nature Conservancy for East Maui Watershed Partnership" to a grant to
"Tri-Isle RC&D for the East Maui Watershed Partnership's East Maui Watershed
Protection Project".
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The Director of Water Supply explained that the energy cost adjustment charged by
Maui Electric Company, Inc. has risen from 3.3 cents per kilowatt-hour on June 30,
2003 to 10.1 cents per kilowatt-hour on September 1, 2005, and it was not
anticipated in formulating their Fiscal Year '06 Budget.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion? Excuse me. If not, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Bill No. 20.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-46

- COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE:

Recommending the following:
That the nominations of Kenneth Rothman, for a term expiring on March 31,
2007; and Cynthia Arruiza, for a term expiring on March 31, 2008, to the Maui
County Grants Review Committee, be APPROVED; and
2.

That a copy of this committee report be TRANSMITTED to the Mayor of the
County of Maui.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO APPROVE COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-46.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND,
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt
Committee Report 06-46. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
At the March 14, 2006 Committee of the Whole meeting, your Committee approved
the nominations of Kenneth Rothman and Cynthia Arruiza to the Maui County Grants
Review Committee for terms expiring respectively on March 31, 2007 and March 31,
2008.
Mr. Rothman replaces Robert McElroy, and Ms. Arruiza replaces Charles Kaukeano.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-47

- COMM! I I EE OF THE WHOLE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That the nominations of Linda Okamoto, for a term expiring on March 31,
2008; and Francis Skowronski, for a term expiring on March 31, 2007, to the
Urban Design Review Board, be APPROVED; and

2.

That a copy of this committee report be TRANSMITTED to the Mayor of the
County of Maui.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO APPROVE COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-47.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt
Committee Report 06-47. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
Your Committee of the Whole, on March 14, 2006, approved the nominations of
Linda Okamoto and Francis Skowronski to the Urban Design Review Board for terms
expiring March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Having none, all in favor of
the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."

NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-48
- COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE:
Recommending that RESOLUTION NO. 06-27 , entitled "AUTHORIZING
SETTLEMENT OF KRS ASSOCIATES II, LLC, ET AL. v. COUNTY OF MAUI, CIVIL
NO. 05-1-0411(3)", be ADOPTED.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO APPROVE COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-48.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt
Committee Report 06-48. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
Your Committee of the Whole approved a resolution on March 14, 2006, to authorize
the settlement of the KRS Associates versus County of Maui case.
This complaint claims damages arising from an alleged breach of contract.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Further discussion, Members? Having none, all in favor of the motion
please say "aye."
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AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: RESOLUTION 06-27.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-49 - COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE:
Recommending that RESOLUTION NO. 06-28 , entitled "AUTHORIZING
SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM NO. 2006-012 OF PAULINE HAFOKA" be ADOPTED.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
MOVE TO APPROVE COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-49.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt
Committee Report 06-49. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
Your Committee of the Whole, on March 14, 2006, approved the resolution to
authorize settlement of the Pauline Hafokars matter, which is Claim No. 2006-012, for
a total of $17,368.42.
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This case alleges damages arising from an automobile collision with a County vehicle
on November 30, 2005.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion? Having none, all in favor of the motion please say
aye

tt

11

AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION 06-28.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-50

- HOUSING AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That copies of this committee report and the agreement entitled
"AGREEMENT REGARDING AFFORDABLE HOUSING: Maui Beach
Hotel/Maui Palms Redevelopment Project" be TRANSMITTED to the Mayor;
and

2.

That County Communication No. 06-8, from the Director of Housing and
Human Concerns, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, good morning.
I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT 06-50 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
Committee Report 06-50. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
Your Housing and Human Services Committee met on March 13, 2006, to get an
update on affordable housing agreement with Elleair Hawaii, Inc., for the
redevelopment of Maui Palms Hotel and renovations to the Maui Beach Hotel.
Pursuant to Chapter 2.94, Maui County Code, relating to the Affordable Housing
Policies for Hotel-Related Developments, Elleair Hawaii is required to provide one
affordable housing unit for every four hotel rooms, or a total of eight units.
The developer will provide eight affordable housing units under a co-development
agreement with Hale, Hale Mahaolu, in Hale Mahaolu's senior housing project in
Kihei.
The Director of Housing and Human Concerns explained that the affordable units
were being built in Kihei instead of the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan area
because no housing projects in the Wailuku Community Plan area could be finished
concurrently with or prior to the occupancy of the main projects.
The Committee notes that pursuant to Section 2.94.030(D), Maui County Code, the
Council's role is strictly to review and comment on this unexecuted affordable
housing agreement.
Your Housing and Human Services Committee recommends copies of the committee
report and the agreement entitled "AGREEMENT REGARDING AFFORDABLE
HOUSING: Maui Beach Hotel/Maui Palms Redevelopment Project" be
TRANSMITTED to the Mayor; and that this County Communication 06-08 be filed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you?
Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think that the discussion that we had in the Committee
and the questions that were posed were very pertinent to not only this, but the bigger
issue of how long are affordable housing requirements good for? Are past
requirements where the housing is not maintained in an affordable state, do they set
aside the requirements?
So I'd like to thank the subject matter Chair for addressing those issues. But I think it
also points out that we have our work cut out for us and perhaps the ordinances do
have to be revisited because, as we heard even in testimony from one of the
Planning Commissioners, their concerns are that the affordable units may not really
satisfy the purpose and intent of affordable housing. And even the fact that they're
located outside of the Community Plan area may be problematic.
So I, I bring that up because I think that it just points out once again that where we
have requirements, I don't think its really clear over time what happens to those
requirements, and have those individuals or those entities really fulfilled the goals
and objectives of the community in providing for the needs of our locals and our
workforce more specifically.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Excuse me.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Having none, all in favor of
the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-51

- HOUSING AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That BILL NO. 21 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING CHAPTER 3.30, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO THE
FIRST-TIME HOME BUYERS FUND", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and
be ORDERED TO PRINT; and

2.

That County Communication No. 05-190, from Councilmember Danny Mateo,
be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
CHAIRMAN, I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-51 BE
ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
Committee Report 06-51. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
CHAIRMAN, I WOULD LIKE TO MOVE THAT THE PROPOSED
BILL ENTITLED "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
CHAPTER 3.30, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO THE
FIRST-TIME HOME BUYERS FUND" ATTACHED TO THIS
COMMITTEE REPORT BE AMENDED TO STRIKE THE WORD
"LOW" AND INSERT IN ITS PLACE THE WORD "NO" IN
SECTIONS 3.30.020(A)(3).
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion to amend by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla,
to the proposed bill attached to Committee Report 06-51. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much.
Chairman, on the ordinance, 3.30.020, this is the first page of the ordinance, item
three, there was a, a, a error in, in, in putting the ordinance together in terms of the
word "low" was put in instead of the word "no." We are correcting that error at this
point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse the Chair, Mr. Mateo. I'm just trying to get a sense of this.
Members, further discussion on the motion to amend? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
I, I'd like clarification because the word "low" is used twice in Section 3, and I'm
assuming only that he means to change the language where it reads: ". . it will
assist in expanding the privilege of home", excuse me, home "ownership to
individuals of low and moderate income levels by providing", by providing rather than
"low interest loans," the word "no".
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and so he's shaking his head, yes, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much and sorry for the confusion.
But if the Members could refer to my memo dated April 6 to the Chair of the
Committee [sic], it, it, it explains in detail the ra--the rationale for the amendment and
the exact citing of the area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo, this is just one, one single change, correct, in Section 3.30.020(A)(3) is
the only amendment we are, you are proposing?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Correct, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I, also, would like clarification because on the discussion
we had, from what I recall, in Committee about First-Time Home Buyers Fund, I
thought we did discuss about "low" interest, you know, that in other words, there was
some type of, I guess, payment that would be made over time just because of the
fact that they were getting some kind of benefit. But I'm not sure. If this is not
correct, would the subject matter Chair please just set me straight because I know we
have had several meetings on these issues and I just want to make sure that my
understanding was or was not correct. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, the under, the, the agreement, the ordinance itself
deals with a "no" interest loan. The interest came into play in the later part of the
ordinance when and in fact the homeowner sold or sells the home. But this is still a
"no" interest loan program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your clarification, Mr. Mateo.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, thank you, because I knew that we had this
conversation, but I appreciate the clarification and particularly as it relates to the
conversion of this particular aspect of the Home Buyers Fund.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further questions on the motion to amend? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, I, I apologize because I probably wasn't at this
meeting. I don't recall a discussion.
But it does say in the committee report that, the bottom of page one, that "the Fiscal
Year '06 Budget appropriated $400,000 to the First-Time Homebuyers Fund with a
provision that legislative be enacted prior to implementation of the first-time home
buyers' program. Your Committee further notes that the first-time home buyers'
program will assist income qualified families by providing a low-interest loan to fund
the down payment for the purchase of a home." So if that is also inaccurate, I would
request that we change that also.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 41

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comment. The Chair will call a, the Chair will call the

midmorning recess now. The Council shall stand in recess till ten-forty.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 10:27 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 10:42 A.M, WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of 7 April 2006 shall
return to order.
Members, what is before you is a motion to amend the main motion as it regards to
Committee Report 05-51.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Zero six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse me, 06-51.
Mr. Mateo had made a motion to amend. Questions? Further questions on the
motion to amend? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd just like to clarify, Mr. Chairman, that during the
break, Chair of the Housing and Human Services Committee, Member Mateo,
informed me that the Committee did discuss the low interest loan and determined
that it would be better to be a "no" interest loan.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion to amend? Having none, all in favor of
the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
We are now back to the main motion as amended. Further discussion? Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much.
Your Housing and Human Services Committee met on June 2, 2005; June 30, 2005;
and March 13, 2005, relating to the matter of the First-Time Home Buyers' Fund.
In Fiscal Year 2006, this Council had created a First-Time Home Buyers Fund with
an appropriation of 400,000, with a provision that legislation be enacted prior to the
implementation of the program.
Your Housing and Human Service--Concern--Services Committee, Chairman, was
charged with the responsibility to establish guidelines for the implementation and
administration of this program.
The first-time home buyers' program will assist income qualified families by providing
a no-interest loan to fund the down payment for the purchase of a home.
Councilmember Molina provided the Committee with a draft bill relating to the
First-Time Home Buyers' Fund, redefining the fund as a revolving fund with
recommended guidelines for administration of the program.
This was used as the working document for the Committee as we crafted the
First-Time Home Buyers', Home Buyers' Fund Program. Many recommendations,
options, and changes were entertained as we worked towards finalizing the
First-Time Home Buyers' Revolving Fund.
Your Housing and Human Services Committee, Chairman, recommends that "A BILL
FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3.30, MAUI COUNTY CODE,
RELATING TO THE FIRST-TIME HOME BUYERS FUND" be passed on first reading
and be ordered to print; and that County Communication 15-190 [sic], be filed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion as amended? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr, Chairman.
First of all, I want to thank Mr. Mateo as the Chair of the Housing and Human
Services Committee for his leadership with this matter in addressing this very, very
serious matter in, in our community. And I want to thank the Committee members for
their support of it as well.
This legislation is unique in that it appropriates local funds for first-time home buyers'
assistance, and that these local funds will be used to help especially those in the gap
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group, those above the 80 percent of median income for home purchases. And
these are the folks that are your, your fire personnel, police, teachers, and medical
personnel.
As we know, with the median price of a home in Maui County so high, which is, you
know, close to $700,000, most working families obviously have a difficult time in
affording the houses and especially raising the down payment or getting the closing
cost for the purchase of a home. So this is where legislation like this can help those
in need get their foot in the door towards the goal of home ownership.
And I guess this, I believe, is another tool in the box, if you will, to address this crisis;
and, hopefully, will help stem the tide of families moving away to other places
because they cannot, you know, get their foot in the door to get a home here in Maui
County.
Recently, according to Lokahi Pacific, there are over 160 families on a waiting list for
home purchase assistance. And this program is, you know, obviously vitally needed
because the Federal Home Purchase Program is on hold pending review. So this
program will provide assistance to those families that have been waiting. And as
soon as the Federal program is once again operating, we'll be able to expand the
resources to assist even more needy families.
And I would ask that should this bill pass, that the Administration expedite the
implementation of this vitally important program.
So, again, my, my thank-you's to Mr. Mateo and his Committee members, and I
would ask for the full unanimous support of the Council.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Members, further discussion on the motion as amended before you? If not, all in
favor of the motion, please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, for the record, that was BILL NO. 21.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, the Chair, with no objections, would like to bring back forward to the, on
the calendar, ceremonial resolution that was earlier placed to the end of the calendar;
and that is the resolution regarding the, congratulating Damien Farias, Sr. Any
objections?

MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk, bring up the resolution, please.
The following ceremonial resolution was presented.

CEREMONIAL RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION
NO. 06-29
CONGRATULATING DAMIEN FARIAS, SR. AS
HAWAII'S DEALER OF THE YEAR FOR 2006 AND
NOMINEE FOR THE 2006 TIME MAGAZINE QUALITY
DEALER OF THE YEAR AWARD BY THE HAWAII
AUTOMOBILE DEALERS ASSOCIATION
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. I got distracted here.
MOVE FOR THE ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
the resolution. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, could we have the Clerk read the resolution
throughout.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. I lost my place there for a, for a
second.
On your behalf, I'm happy to introduce or, or move for the resolution's adoption. I
hope the Members will be supporting this.
I think that Mr. Farias, as, as those of us who have been around for a little while
know, that he is more than just this. His devotion of many, many years and
commitment to the youth of Maui County is legendary here, and we all know about it.
He has helped many programs. He has, I believe he's even coached. And he's
always cared about what happens with our community and particularly with our
youth.
I am, I am very happy that he has been garner--has garnered this award, and we
wish him the best in the future.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion? Mr. Molina.
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COUNC1LMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
And I'd like to offer my congratulations to Mr. Farias on this very well-deserved
award. And to borrow a phrase from Toyota, "Oh, what a feeling!" And it is definitely
a great feeling for me to support this resolution.
And I also want to recognize him for all of his wonderful contributions to our local
newspaper with those wonderful trivia questions in the newspapers. So
congratulations to you, Mr. Farias.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Any further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
If we can have Mr. Farias and your son join us on the floor, please.
Ms. Tavares, if you would, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Chairman, on your behalf, thank you.
Members, it is my honor to introduce to you Mr. Damien Farias, and then his son
you've already met, Jr.
MR. FARIAS: Thank you very graciously for introducing me. I am, I don't do too well in
front of groups or speaking publicly. I like staying behind the scenes and keeping
things quiet.
The resolution was read, and I kept thinking, "Is that me?" You know, I do what I do
because that's the right thing to do. I do it because I like doing it, and I do it because
the community has supported me to make it possible for me to do it. And I try to run
my business the way I would expect all business people run their business, with the
highest integrity, thinking mostly about their customers, trying to please all of them all
the day, though years ago, I heard that "You can please most of the people most of
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the time, but you can't please all the people all the time." But we endeavor to do the
latter. We try to, as much as possible, to please all the people all of the time. And I
humbly accept this, and I'm very proud to.
Actually, it was the second nomination I had. The first one was in 1983 when I was
nominated for the same award. And what makes it even--make me feel about or as
proud about it is, anything else is, I'm the, I think I'm the smallest dealer in the State.
By that, I mean I represent one franchise. If you look at any other dealer in the State
anywhere, they represent several. So we're able to do what we do because we only
have to worry about satisfying one distributor.
But, again, thank you so much for this recognition. I really appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We thank Mr. Farias and his son for joining us this morning. It's
recognition well deserved of a family business that has continued to provide good
service, a good product, and major contributions back to the community that, as he
has said, has supported him and he has continued to support his community. So we
thank the Farias family.
With that, Mr. Clerk, let us proceed with the agenda.
COUNTY CLERK: And, Mr. Chairman, for the record, that was RESOLUTION 06-29.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
The Clerk presented the remaining committee reports at this time.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-52 - HOUSING AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE:
Recommending that RESOLUTION NO. 06-30 , entitled "REFERRING TO THE
LANAI, MAUI, AND MOLOKAI PLANNING COMMISSIONS A DRAFT BILL
ESTABLISHING A RESIDENTIAL WORKFORCE HOUSING POLICY", be
ADOPTED.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
MR. CHAIRMAN, I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT 06-52 BE
ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
Committee Report 06-52. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
Your Housing and Human Services Committee met on June 16, 2005; July 14, Sep-September 15, October 6, October 20, November 1, December 8, all 2005;
January 19, February 1, February 16, March 2, March--March 13, 2006, discussing,
gathering information with public input and participation as we crafted an affordable
housing policy for the County of Maui.
After ten months of intense dialogue, exchange of opinions and options, panel and
other group forums, and numerous considerations, your Housing and Human
Services Committee has developed a draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A RESIDENTIAL WORKFORCE HOUSING
POLICY" .
With the draft policy done, your Committee recommended that the draft bill be
referred to the respective Planning Commissions for their review and comment. The
Committee, therefore, voted to recommend the adoption of the proposed resolution
entitled "REFERRING TO THE LANAI, MAUI, AND MOLOKAI PLANNING
COMMISSIONS A DRAFT BILL ESTABLISHING A RESIDENTIAL WORKFORCE
HOUSING POLICY", and I ask the Members for their, their, their consideration in the
adoption of the resolution.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Excuse me.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
I just want to say thank you very much to the Chair for the many meetings that we
had in regards to creating a guideline for affordable housing. I, I think it's a first for
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the County and, and it's going to be good. I just want to say congratulations to the
Committee Chair for bearing this several months, you know, getting information and,
and coming up with this draft.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would like to also thank the Chair of the Committee and
to thank all the people who contributed because this product, it's still not complete. I
know that there were some issues that we dealt with that once it comes back from
the various commissions, I'm sure it will have comments. It will have different
suggestions as to how we can improve the bill. So I look at this still, as the Chair put
it, a work in progress; that our work is not yet complete until it comes back, and then
I think we will have an opportunity to take another look at it, see what comments the
members of the public have made.
But I would also encourage people not only as part of their participation in General
Plan, but also with the many letters to the editor crying for housing. And not all is
being pleased with what is being produced or the policies that have been lacking.
Please come to the table with your suggestions, and don't just launch criticism, but
make it be constructive so that what we ultimately have is a policy that's reflective of
the wishes of the community. And that's the way good legislation comes about.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion before you, Members? If not, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: RESOLUTION 06-30.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-53 - LAND USE COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
That BILL NO. 22 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO
AMEND THE STATE LAND USE DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION FROM
AGRICULTURAL TO RURAL FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT
HAMAKUAPOKO - MAKAWAO, MAUI HAWAII", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;
2.

That BILL NO, 23 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO
CHANGE ZONING FROM INTERIM DISTRICT TO RU-1 RURAL DISTRICT
(CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT
HAMAKUAPOKO - MAKAWAO, MAUI HAWAII", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

3.

That BILL. NO. 24 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
GRANTING A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO MARTY HERLING FOR A
TRANSIENT VACATION RENTAL WITHIN THE RU-1 RURAL ZONING
DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT 3265 BALDWIN AVENUE,
HAMAKUAPOKO - MAKAWAO, MAUI HAWAII", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

4.

That the County Clerk RECORD the "Unilateral Agreement and Declaration for
Conditional Zoning"; and

5.

That County Communication No. 02-55, from the former Planning Director, be
FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-53 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
Committee Report 06-53. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
The purpose of the first proposed bill is to grant a District Boundary Amendment for
the operation of the Banyan Tree Bed and Breakfast, a transient vacation rental on
approximately 2.102 acres situated at Baldwin Avenue, Makawao, Maui, Hawaii.
Purpose of the second proposed bill is to conditionally change the zoning for the
subject property for the operation of the Banyan Tree Bed and Breakfast.
And the purpose of the third proposed bill is to grant a five-year Conditional Permit to
Marty Herling for the operation of the Banyan Tree on the subject property.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Okay.
The Chair needs a very short recess to confer with the Clerk. So, Members, if you
could still remain in the chambers. Short recess, subject to the call of the Chair.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:03 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:07 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: The regular meeting of the Council of the County of Maui, April 7, 2006,
shall return to order.
Members, we do have a motion to adopt Committee Report 06-53 before you.
Mr. Carroll has given his opening comments. Further discussion?
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The Chair will take this opportunity to state that he will be voting with reservations,
particularly with Bill No. 3 of this committee report, which is regarding the conditional
permit to operate to a transient vacation rental within the Rural District.
I think the Chair has been very consistent in his position regarding this, that I do not
support such permits. And, therefore, at second regarding when each bill is listed
separately, the Chair will be voting no on that. However, for today's meeting, with
reservations, the Chair will continue to support the Committee's effort: one, to get
this property situated at Hamakuapoko, Maui, to be reclassified from Agricultural to
Rural; and the Chair further supports the rezoning from Interim to R-1 Rural District.
Stating that, if there's no further discussion, the Chair will ask for the vote. All in favor
of the motion, please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, BILL NOS. 22, 23, and 24, respectively.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-54

- PARKS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO. 06-31 , entitled "NOMINATING ADDITIONAL
AREAS ON MAUI FOR DESIGNATION AS ENTERPRISE ZONES", be
ADOPTED; and

2.

That County Communication No. 05-152, from the Economic Development
Coordinator, be FILED.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
MOVE FOR THE ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-54.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Johnson, seconded by Ms. Tavares, to adopt
Committee Report 06-54. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
Your Parks and Economic Development Committee met on November 17, 2005 and
again on March 16, 2006, and we met in reference to County Communication
No. 05-152, from the Economic Development Coordinator, and also the head of the
department, Ms. Lynn Araki-Regan, wherein she transmitted a proposed resolution
entitled "NOMINATING ADDITIONAL AREAS ON MAUI FOR DESIGNATION AS
ENTERPRISE ZONES".
We did have the participation of the State, and Mr. Smythe was very gracious in
coming to the Committee meetings to answer many of the questions that we did
have.
I think that the Committee members also received substantial testimony from the
agricultural community basically stating what their goals and objectives were in terms
of increasing employment within their industry, but also how this would actually help
relieve some of the financial burden on their small businesses, so they spoke in
strong support of it.
There are bills that are still moving through the legislative process at the State level
that may slightly alter the way that this is applied, and I think the Members were able
to ask questions relating specifically to agriculture. It did not involve any other
component other than agriculture with regard to those changes that may or may not
be made at the State level.
But there was a sense of urgency in moving this legislature forward. And I would like
to thank the Administration, as well as those who came to testify, and the Committee
members who did ask very probing questions about this legislation.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 54

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on this motion, Members?
The Chair will just quickly say he has his reservations as regards to the benefits that
Lanai has not realized through this designation.
Okay, no further comments, Members, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: RESOLUTION 06-31.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-55

- PLANNING COMMITTEE:

Recommending that RESOLUTION NO. 06-32 , entitled "REFERRING TO THE
LANAI, MAUI, AND MOLOKAI PLANNING COMMISSIONS A DRAFT BILL
RELATING TO THE PERMITTING OF TRANSIENT VACATION RENTALS", be
ADOPTED.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.
MOVE FOR THE ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE REPORT 06-55.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Mateo, to adopt
Committee Report 06-55. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.
The committee report refers the transient vacation rental bill, or a bill, to the Planning
Commissions on the three islands for their public hearings and comments, or
meetings and comments.
This is another case where when we get it back, we still have a lot of work to do on it,
but I think that the wider we have input from the community through whatever
sources, we've had our meetings, and several of them and in different districts also,
but going through the Planning Commissions and getting their comments, I think
would be very helpful to the Committee to further work on it when it returns.
And basically, the, the bill was sent over was Councilmember Carroll's bill that was
submitted August of 2005 And the purpose is to identify the instances in which TVRs
would be allowed; and to expand the scope of eligibility for bed and breakfast home
permits under Chapter 19.64.
We know that there's a lot of interest in this particular area and its community
Countywide as far as the kinds of comments we've gotten. Our folks are concerned
in every area regarding the transient vacation rentals, the process, when it's
permitted, where it's permitted, how it will be restricted and all of that.
So we have been receiving lots and lots of input. I urge the community to continue
sending us your feelings or your input regarding this transient vacation rental issue.
So I ask that the Members all support this so that we can get it out to the Planning
Commissions.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion? Ms., Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. One of the things that I neglected, because we have
so much on our plate, to bring up in Committee, but that I would ask of, in the
submission of this report, because we're into budget and also because legislation
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was passed at the State level that would have enabled our Finance Director to have
access to who is paying GET, TAT, and other types of taxes, and we have not yet, to
my knowledge anyway, received that information, one of the things that may be
helpful is that when this goes to the different Commissions for their comments, that
they would also send letters perhaps to the State Legislature and also to the
Governor's financial department, to basically obtain that information because it's
really important that we know definitively where the vacation rentals are, who's
paying what tax, and who is not.
I realize that if it's an illegal operation, you're not going to be paying the tax. But I
think that would help to really reveal the information that sometimes is not available
to us through any other means other than through the tax information.
So that would just be a comment, and I'm sure the transmission of this proposed
resolution will reach the Planning Commissions for their action. But some, at some
point, we should really be applying the laws that are adopted; and that, I believe, is
one of the bills that was overridden by the State Legislature because there was a
veto from the Governor. So I think it's really important that we don't lose sight of that
information being really critical, because as more and more amenities are requested
in our rural and our agricultural areas because of people doing these types of
operations, we need to know where we're going to get the money; and the State
should also be asking those questions.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members, on the motion? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk,
COUNTY CLERK: RESOLUTION 06-32,

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 57

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-56

- PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO.
, entitled "ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
ROADWAY LOTS FOR THE MAUNALOA VILLAGE SUBDIVISION,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUI COUNTY CODE, be ADOPTED;
and

2.

That County Communication No. 06-71, from the Director of Public Works and
Environmental Management, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-56 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina, to adopt
Committee Report 05, 06, excuse me, dash 56. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Chair.
This reports details your Public Works Committee review and recommended approval
of a resolution to accept the dedication of roadway lots located within the Maunaloa
Village Subdivision on Molokai.
The subdivision received final approval in February of 1995, and all road
improvements within the jurisdiction of the Department were satisfactorily completed
and approved in January 1998.
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Having received recommendation from the Department and review by Corporation

Counsel, the Committee recommends adoption of the resolution and the filing of
County Communication 06-71.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much.
Chairman, I'll be supporting the motion on the floor. The request to, from the, from
Molokai Ranch to, to dedicate the roadway lots to the County of Maui that spanned
eight years was just too long a period of time. And I still cannot understand why the
delay, why eight years. When the request for the dedication was submitted to the
County, the roadways not only met requirements and conditions, it, it went beyond
that. Eight years later, obviously, with new standards and with deterioration,
obviously, there is some need for repair.
However, in terms of fairness, I believe that the recommendation as being presented
by the Chairman of the Public Works is more than appropriate at this time.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion, Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes was not present when this item was discussed in
Public Works, but I feel that the public should be aware that this delay is going to
probably cost the taxpayers of Maui County upwards of $800,000. And that is to
bring the ramps for individuals who have disabilities up to current standards. This will
probably be an ongoing project that will not be able to be completed right away.
But I think that we really have to look at being more timely in the acceptance of these
roadway lots. And if we're not going to do it, I think it should be very clear why we're
not going to do it.
So for me, I'm not happy about the fact that it's going to cost us dearly. But I do
believe it is incumbent upon the County to provide for people with disabilities. And so
from that perspective, I will be supporting this particular measure.
Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.
May I ask a question of the Public Works Director?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Arakawa, if this roadway dedication had occurred, let's
say closer to when the time the roads were finished and things like that, would that
have saved us any money in doing the work now? Because I notice all around Maui
County, we're doing curb cuts on, in older subdivisions too for the ADA requirements,
which we're having to pay for throughout the County of Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Councilmember Tavares, the final subdivision bond was released, I believe in 1998.
My understanding is that the Disability and Communication Access Board sets the
standard for hall ramps, handicapped ramps should be constructed. Those
standards changed in the year 2002.
So, basically, if the dedication had occurred prior to then, then they would have been
in conformance with the then applicable standards. And then if we had accepted it
prior to 2002, then it would have been the County's responsibility to upgrade the
ramps in any event.
Being that it hasn't occurred, it is still our responsibility to upgrade the, the ramps at
this point, based on the Council's, the position that's being put forward by the Public
Works Committee today.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you for that information and clarification.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
Further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.

I'd also like to ask a question of the Director.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Arakawa, who initiates the dedication to the County,
this submittal to the Council?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: The onus of
getting all of the documents for dedication is on the applicant. But once all of the
paperwork is submitted, then it would be submitted to the Council by our Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there any County Code requirement that the
paperwork be submitted to the Department at a given period of time once they
receive final approval, subdivision approval?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No. There is
no such requirement as far as the timing for any submissions for dedication.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is that why we're getting all these long-lingering
roadway dedications? I mean we have a requirement that roadways be dedicated to
the County, so it seems like there's a missing link somewhere.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No. Actually,
the construction plans, if I may back up, the construction plans for a, a subdivision
are reviewed by our agency and a number of other agencies for compliance with
applicable County Codes, and they are construct--we just check to see if they're, they
are constructed in accordance with the approved plans. Once the final subdivision
approval, it only indicates that the construction had been done in accordance with
those plans.
The dedication issue is handled separately by the applicant submitting those
documents to the, to our Department and for acceptance by the Council. So the time
lag involved between final subdivision approval and dedication may typically be
several years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's, that's what I'm getting at. There seems to
be, I mean there may be roadways out there, and we, and we hear about them all the
time, Mr. Chair, that were supposed to be dedicated to the County and never were;
and so they're in limbo. They're not claimed to be owned by the private landowners,
and they're, at the same time, not claimed to be owned by the County.
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So you're telling me then that there is no mechanism to ensure that the private
landowner forwards the necessary documentation to get the roadway dedicated to
the County?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: That's correct.
There is no requirement that upon final subdivision approval, a roadway owner needs
to dedicate that to the County. The road, the roadway owner may opt to keep that
roadway ownership in private hands.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: With the Director's approval?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No.
Once the final subdivision approval is granted, then the roadway ownership is still in
private ownership. And so it's the, that decision is up to the applicant whether or not
they want to come forward with a request for dedication to the, to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I find that interesting because I know there's a County
Code requirement that roadways be built to County standards and be dedicated to
the County.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No. The
roadway, the, the, the roadways needs to be built to County standards, but there is
not a requirement that it needs to be dedicated to the County. That's an option on
the part of the owner.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And so then there's no mechanism within the
Department to follow through on those roadways that are supposed to be dedicated,
to make sure that they are processed?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No. Because
the onus is on the applicant because if they opt to keep the ownership of the road
private, then, obviously, the roadway owner will do all of the maintenance and
shoulder all of the liability.
Now, if they choose to come forward to the County and ask the County to accept
dedication, then they need to get all of the requisite documents in to us, and we'll
come forward to the Council for action on that item.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
The question becomes when did the applicant, in this case, I'm—when did the
applicant have everything that they needed to do completed with and to the
satisfactory of the Department, Mr. Arakawa? When was everything in your hands,
including the request for dedication?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Councilmember Kane, the request that was submitted to the Committee basically
described the, the punch list that needed to be followed up on prior to dedication from
our standpoint. So from our standpoint, it was still not complete.
However, we were also concerned about the time lag, their time lag between final
subdivision approval and the current request for dedication. Therefore, we submitted
this request to the Public Works Committee for a decision as to whether or not the
Council deemed it appropriate to have us require the applicant to bring everything up
to standard as we saw fit or to accept dedication of the roadways as is.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No. I appreciate your response, but what I'm trying to get at is
when was the initial request by the applicant made for dedicating the roads to the
County? In other words, I'm trying to pinpoint who's the one who created the lag. Is
it the, is it the applicant who, although in 1998, we seemed to be okay, but was it at
that point that they made the decision on their initiative to dedicate the roadways? Or
when was that?
Because if they decided to make the dedication of the roadways after the punch list
that you described, as described in the committee report, and with your comments in
the Committee talking about the ADA compliancy issues, to me, that's important.
Because if they waited to now say, "You know what, we want the County to consider
this as a public road or public road system," and it was after changes were made to
the, to the compliance for County standards, then I think Ms. Johnson's comments
have merit.
So can you tell me when, when did they initiate the request to have the roads
dedicated to the County?
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DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Councilmember Kane, your, your question is a good one, but it's something that I,
you know, I can't answer because I, I don't have the file in front of me right now. But
if you would like, the representative from Molokai Ranch is here and he can give you,
perhaps, a better background on what transpired.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, Mr. Chair, I prefer that the, the Department be given that
opportunity to respond. And because it's a resolution, I'm assuming that it's a "one
time and we're done."
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: With that being said, you know, it's up to the body if they want
to hear the response because I can tell you, if--I'll, I'll draw this conclusion,
Mr. Chairman. If the request by the applicant to have the roads become public were
made at a point in time after there were changes to the standards of County roads,
then I believe the applicant should pay for those improvements sub--prior to us
accepting them.
Why should we let them sit on a road for eight years, and then they come forward
when there's changes and say, "Oh, there's been a time lapse. We built them at the
time and they were accepted at the time." To me, that's irrelevant. The point
becomes they had the initiative of coming forward and dedicating those roads. And if
they didn't do it in a time that recognized the preexisting standard and did it at
something greater, that's not something the taxpayers should eat. It should some-be something they eat.
That's my opinion. I apologize I wasn't a part of the Committee's discussion. But
based on what I'm reading in the committee report and the responses by the Director
and the discussion here at the Council, I am not ready to move forward and support
this resolution.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
The Chair will be giving you some options once I allow additional Members who wish
to make comment on that motion that is before you, your opportunity.
Is there further discussion on the motion before you?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Is it possible to have the developer come forward,

provide us some information in regards to time and dates that things were sent to the
County?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is an option that the body may consider to allow. We can consider
end of calendar with this item to allow the Director to possibly ask his staff to maybe
provide him with some information from the specific file. We may defer this to the
next Council meeting, as well as we may take a vote up or down as the motion is
before us. So those are the various options before you, the Members of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SO WITH THAT, CHAIR, I, ID LIKE TO MOVE THAT THIS ITEM
PLACED, BE PLACED AT THE END OF THE AGENDA.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We have a motion to place this to the end of the calendar. We
have a motion made by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Mateo.
Any further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: We shall have Committee Report 06-56 at the end of the calendar.
Mr. Clerk.
COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-56 WAS DEFERRED TO THE
END OF THE AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING.
(See pages 99 through 108.)

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 65

COMMITTEE REPORT

NO.

06-57

- PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO. 06-33 , entitled "AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN
EMINENT DOMAIN FOR THE ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY
INTERESTS AT WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAII FOR MARKET STREET
IMPROVEMENTS (WELLS STREET TO MOKUHAU ROAD), FEDERAL AID
PROJECT STP-3405(1)", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be
ORDERED TO PRINT; and

2.

That County Communication No. 06-58, from the Director of Public Works and
Environmental Management, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-57 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina, to adopt
Committee Report 06-57. Mr. Pontanilla,
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
This report details your Committee review and recommended approval of a resolution
to authorize eminent domain proceedings for three portions of parcels along Main
Street in Wailuku.
The subject properties are necessary for a non-exclusive drainage easement and
acquiring fee simple interest necessary for continuous sidewalks as part of the
Market Street Improvements Federal Aid Project.
The project comprise reconstructing pavement; installing drainage, curbs, sidewalks;
and constructing driveways along the stretch of Market Street bounded by Wells
Street and Mokuhau Road.
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The Director advised that the impacts of not securing these portions of lands would
likely be flooding and discontinuous sidewalk in the area.
The Committee recommends adoption of the resolution and County
Communication 06-58 be filed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? If not, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: RESOLUTION 06-33.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, there are no further committee reports to consider. Shall
we proceed with communications?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
The following County Communications were presented.

COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS
NO. 06-85 - DAVELYNN M. TENGAN, PROSECUTING ATTORNEY,
(dated March 23, 2006)
Informing of the Department of the Prosecuting Attorney's intent to expend forfeiture
funds as follows: $5,000 for office renovation, $10,000 for a scanner, and $10,000
for staff training.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIRMAN, MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION
NO. 06-85.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to file County
Communication 06-85. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No further discussion, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, discussion on the motion before you? If not, all in favor of the motion
please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 06-86 - KALBERT K. YOUNG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated March 14, 2006)
Transmitting seventeen contracts for February 2006 for information and filing with the
County Clerk.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, UNLESS THERE ARE ANY REQUESTS BY THE
MEMBERS TO HAVE ANY OF THE SEVENTEEN CONTRACTS
FOR FEBRUARY OF 2006 REFERRED TO THE BUDGET AND
FINANCE COMMITTEE, I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NO. 06-86.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to file County
Communication 06-86. Any request by the Members? Having none, all in favor of
the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
I would request that Contract No. C3649 be referred to Committee. It's the last one
for Maui County Community Television.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, we have one contract, C3649; name of project, Video
Product, Broadcast Distribution and Captioning Services, to be sent to the Budget
and Finance Committee for further consideration.
Any other request? If not, all remaining sixteen contracts, as submitted on the
Director of Finance report for February 2006 will be filed. Any further discussion? If
not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-86 WAS FILED, WITH THE
EXCEPTION OF CONTRACT NO. C3649 WHICH WAS
REFERRED TO THE BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE.
NO. 06-87 - ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 14, 2006)
In accordance with Section 2.41.040, Maui County Code, informing of a vacancy on
the Commission on Culture and the Arts, due to the resignation of Janet Agapay on
February 28, 2006.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-87.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to file County
Communication 06-87. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
This matter deals with the resignation of Janet Agapay from the Commission on
Culture and the Arts effective February 28, 2005 [sic]. I'd like to thank Ms. Agapay
for serving our community.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 06-88

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 14, 2006)

In accordance with Section 2.41.040, Maui County Code, informing of a vacancy on
the Commission on Naming Streets, Parks and Facilities, due to the resignation of
Susanne Kekahuna on March 7, 2006.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-88.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to file County
Communication 06-88. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
The Mayor's office has informed us of the resignation of Susanne Kekahuna from the
Commission on Naming Streets effective March 7, 2006. Much mahalo to
Ms. Kekahuna for her service to our community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 06-89 - ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 14, 2006)
In accordance with Section 2.41.040, Maui County Code, informing of a vacancy on
the Liquor Control Adjudication Board, due to the resignation of Lance Collins on
March 3, 2006.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-89.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to file County
Communication 06-89. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
This matter deals with the resignation of Lance Collins from the Liquor Control
Adjudication Board effective March 3, 2006. I'd like to thank Mr. Collins for his
service to our community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 06-90

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 15, 2006)

In accordance with Section 2.41.040, Maui County Code, informing of a vacancy on
the Liquor Control Commission, due to the resignation of Blake Takayama on
March 14, 2006.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-90.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to file County
Communication 06-90. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
Via correspondence from the Mayor's office, Blake Takayama has resigned from the
Liquor Control Commission effective March 14, 2006. And much, plenty of mahalos
to Mr. Takayama for serving our community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 06-91 - ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 15, 2006)
Transmitting the proposed Fiscal Year 2007 Budget and the following proposed bills
entitled:
"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2006 TO JUNE 30,
2007";

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAM FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007";
3.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TWENTY-NINE
MILLION FOUR HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($29,445,000)
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE
COUNTY OF MAUI FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY ALL OR
A PART OF THE COST OF APPROPRIATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS OF
AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI; FIXING THE FORM, DENOMINATIONS AND
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CERTAIN OTHER FEATURES OF SUCH BONDS AND PROVIDING FOR THEIR
SALE; AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE TO DETERMINE CERTAIN
DETAILS OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A LIKE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES
IN ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF SUCH BONDS; AND
PROVIDING FOR OTHER ACTIONS RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND
DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS";
4.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT PART OF THE PROCEEDS
OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI HERETOFORE
ISSUED IS IN EXCESS OF THE AMOUNTS REQUIRED FOR THE PURPOSES
FOR WHICH SUCH BONDS WERE INITIALLY ISSUED, OR MAY OR SHOULD
NOT BE APPLIED TO THOSE PURPOSES, AND DIRECTING TO OTHER PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS OR AUTHORIZED PURPOSES OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI";
and

5.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 3, MAUI COUNTY CODE,
PERTAINING TO THE COLLECTION OF FARES FOR PUBLIC TRANSIT
SERVICES".

The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-91 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 06-92 - RIKI HOKAMA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated March 13, 2006)
Transmitting a letter from Ron Kubo, Superintendent of the Waiehu Golf Course,
submitting Waiehu Golf Course revenue reports for the periods July 1, 2005 through
December 31, 2005 and July 1, 2005 through February 28, 2006.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-92 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 06-93 - GLENN T. CORREA, DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION,
(dated March 17, 2006)
Transmitting the Waiehu Golf Course revenue report for the periods July 1, 2005
through December 31, 2005.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-93 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 75

NO. 06-94 - LLOYD Y. GINOZA, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated March 24, 2006)
Transmitting the following:
1.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
APPENDIX A OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2006 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO THE OFFICE OF THE MAYOR"; and

2.

A proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A
GRANT OF FUNDS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL
RESOURCES, DIVISION OF BOATING AND OCEAN RECREATION, AND
NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION/HAWAIIAN
ISLANDS HUMPBACK WHALE NATIONAL MARINE SANCTUARY FOR THE
MAALAEA HARBOR SEWAGE PUMP OUT PROGRAM".

The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-94 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 06-95 - BRIAN T. MOTO, CORPORATION COUNSEL and
DAVELYNN M. TENGAN, PROSECUTING ATTORNEY,
(dated March 29, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
SECTION 2.44.015, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO SALARIES OF
DEPUTIES CORPORATION COUNSEL AND DEPUTIES PROSECUTING
ATTORNEY".
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-95 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 06-96 - DIANE MORGAN, CHAIR, COST OF GOVERNMENT COMMISSION,
(dated March 28, 2006)
Transmitting the Cost of Government Commission's "REPORT OF FINDINGS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COMMISSION YEAR APRIL 1, 2005 TO MARCH 31,
2006".
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-96 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
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NO. 06-97 - ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 23, 2006)
Transmitting a copy of Honolulu City Council's Resolution No. 06-066, CD-1, entitled
"REQUESTING THE CAMPAIGN SPENDING COMMISSION TO WORK WITH THE
STATE AND COUNTY GOVERNMENTS TO DEVELOP AND PERIODICALLY
UPDATE REPORTS IDENTIFYING STATE AND COUNTY CONTRACTORS WHO
ARE PROHIBITED FROM MAKING CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS UNDER
ACT 203, SESSION LAWS OF HAWAII 2005."
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-97 be referred to the Committee of the Whole.
(COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-97 WAS FILED LATER
IN THIS MEETING. See pages 78 and 79 for discussion.)
NO. 06-98 - G. RIKI HOKAMA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated March 24, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "URGING THE STATE OF HAWAII
CAMPAIGN SPENDING COMMISSION TO WORK WITH THE STATE AND
COUNTY GOVERNMENTS TO DEVELOP AND PERIODICALLY UPDATE
REPORTS IDENTIFYING STATE AND COUNTY CONTRACTORS WHO ARE
PROHIBITED FROM MAKING CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS UNDER ACT 203,
SESSION LAWS OF HAWAII 2005."
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-98 be referred to the Committee of the Whole.
NO. 06-99 - MILTON M. ARAKAWA, A.I.C.P., DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, (dated March 31, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF HAWAII FOR THE
SETTLEMENT OF ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF THE CENTRAL MAUI AND LANAI
LANDFILLS."
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-99 be referred to the Committee of the Whole.
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NO. 06 - 100 - MICHAEL W. FOLEY, PLANNING DIRECTOR,

(dated March 17, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "APPROVING THE ACTION OF THE
MAUI PLANNING COMMISSION GRANTING A TYPE 3 BED AND BREAKFAST
HOME PERMIT FOR THE WAILUKU GUESTHOUSE BED AND BREAKFAST ON
PROPERTY SITUATED AT WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAII", and related documents.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-100 be referred to the Land Use Committee.
NO, 06-101 - MICHAEL W. FOLEY, PLANNING DIRECTOR,
(dated March 7, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING
HALEAKALA RANCH COMPANY A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT AND
OPERATE THE HALEAKALA RANCH VISITOR'S CENTER, WITHIN THE COUNTY
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KULA, MAUI,
HAWAII", and related documents.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-101 be referred to the Land Use Committee.
NO. 06-102 - ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated March 15, 2006)
Transmitting the "COUNTY OF MAUI 2006 REPORT ON AGRICULTURE".
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-102 be referred to the Parks and Economic Development Committee.
NO. 06-103 - DANNY A. MATEO, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated March 30, 2006)
Transmitting the a proposed resolution entitled "APPOINTING DEGRAY
VANDERBILT TO THE MOLOKAI GENERAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE".
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-103 be referred to the Planning Committee.
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(THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION ATTACHED TO COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NO, 06-103 WAS ADOPTED LATER IN THE
MEETING AND ASSIGNED RESOLUTION NO. 06-34 .
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-103 WAS THEN FILED.
See pages 80 through 83 for discussion.)
NO. 06-104 - MICHAEL W. FOLEY, PLANNING DIRECTOR,
(dated March 10, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
SECTION 19.04.040, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO GENERAL
PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS", and related documents.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-104 be referred to the Planning Committee.
NO. 06-105 - GEORGE Y. TENGAN, DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY,
(dated March 6, 2006)
Transmitting copies of the Department of Water Supply's Monthly Source Report and
Groundwater Use Report for the month ended February 2006.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 06-105 be referred to the Water Resources Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Clerk.
Members, you do have the Chairman's recommendation of referral of the various
County Communications on the left-hand margin of your agendas. Are there any
requests? Mr. Molina.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION RELATING TO
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-97
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-97.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to file County
Communication 06-97. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this consideration.
I would like to ask the body to consider this matter. County Communication
No. 06-97 and 06-98 are, 1 guess, pretty much the same thing. So basically to
reduce having two separate communications go to the Committee dealing with the
same matter, that's the intent of filing the communication from the Honolulu City
Council, Council's resolution dealing with this matter, Campaign Spending issue.
As in County Communication No. 06-98, it's the same thing which is being
transmitted by you, Mr. Chairman. So for the sake of I guess saving paperwork, you
know, I think this might be a, a good thing to do to file 06-97.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
The Chair will just--would like to support Mr. Molina's request.
County
Communication 06-98, Members, from your Chairman to the, to you, the Members, is
already drafted in resolution form that is appropriate for this Council. And so I would
ask for your support of Mr. Molina's motion.
Further discussion, Members, to file County Communication 06-97. If not, all in favor
of the motion, please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Thank you very much, Mr. Molina.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Further considerations? Mr. Mateo.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION RELATING TO
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-103
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much.
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5(H) OF THE RULES OF THE
COUNCIL, I MOVE THAT THE REQUIREMENT OF COMMITTEE
REFERRAL AND RECOMMENDATION FOR THE ATTACHED
PROPOSED RESOLUTION ENTITLED "APPOINTING DEGRAY
VANDERBILT TO THE MOLOKAI GENERAL PLAN ADVISORY
COMMITTEE" BE WAIVED.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to waive
the requirement of Committee referral and recommendation regarding the proposed
resolution attached to County Communication 06-103. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I move that the proposed resolution be adopted.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're still on your original motion, Mr. Mateo-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to waive.
Any further discussion? Members, discussion on the motion before you? If not, all in
favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.

Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, Chair.
I MOVE THE, THAT THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION BE
ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to adopt
the proposed resolution that is attached to County Communication 06-103.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much.
THE MOTION, CHAIRMAN, WOULD ALSO INCLUDE THE FILING
OF THE ITEM AS WELL.
Chairman, Section 2.80B.040(B)(3) of the Maui County Code provides that "[t]he
Molokai general plan advisory committee be composed of thirteen members, nine
appointed by the council and four appointed by the mayor". By Resolution
No. 05-156, the Council appointed nine Molokai residents to the Molokai General
Plan Advisory Committee. However, one of the appointees submitted his resignation
due to the relocation to Maui.
The urgency of today's action is to assure that the Molokai General Plan Advisory
Committee start with the full thirteen-member component as stipulated by Code. The
Molokai GPAC scheduled meeting is slated for April 28 and 29, 2006.
Without appropriate--appropriate action, Chairman, the Planning Committee will not
be able to address this matter until after budget process in June. 1, therefore, ask the
Members for their consideration and support of the resolution.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion? Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I support this motion to, to, to do this now because of the timing issue And we have
discussed at great length in, in your Planning Committee, Mr. Chairman, the GPACs
for all three of our islands. And I don't think that it's some--anything new that we're
going to learn about it if we do refer it to Committee, and especially because of the
time constraints, I would support this on the floor today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion to adopt the resolution, Members, as well as the
filing of the communi--communication. The Chair will, with no objections, entertain
the filing with the motion by Mr. Mateo.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would just like to comment, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're very lucky to have someone like DeGray
Vanderbilt willing to volunteer for full-time community service. He's already on the
Planning Commission for Molokai, and he comes back and forth from Maui to
Molokai to help inform the Council on issues that are important to residents of
Molokai. And for him to take on also the General Plan Advisory Committee, I think is
very commendable and I just wanted to make that comment for the record.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
Further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Thank you very much.
Are there additional requests regarding County Communications and the
recommended referral by your Chairman? Having none, those County
Communications shall be referred to the appropriate standing committees as
recommended and listed on the left-hand margin of your agenda, Members.
Mr. Clerk.
The following bills for ordinances were presented.

ORDINANCES
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 14 (2006)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2006 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO ESTIMATED REVENUES, THE DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, TOTAL OPERATING
APPROPRIATIONS, AND TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIRMAN, MOVE TO PASS ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING, BILL NO. 14 OF 2006.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to adopt Bill
No. 14 on second and final reading. Mr. Kane.
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COUNC1LMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members.
The passage of this bill will allow the Department of Public Works and Environmental
Management fund increased costs relating in the operations at the new Central Maui
Landfill receiving facility, as well as other County landfills. These costs were not
anticipated in the Department's Fiscal Year 2006 Budget request to the Council, thus
the adjustment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Bill No. 14 passes second and final reading.
Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 15 (2006)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2006 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, MOVE TO PASS ON SECOND AND FINAL READING
BILL NO. 15 OF 2006.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to pass Bill
No. 15 on second and final reading. Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Long discussion in this area but, ultimately, the passage of this bill will reappropriate
$325,000 for the Department of Finance's Division of Motor Vehicle Licensing, we
know as DMVL, the satellite offices in Makawao and Kihei to fund the long-awaited
repairs at the Upcountry Pool, as well as several other County facilities.
Your Committee was concerned that the repairs at the Upcountry Pool are not
addressed in a timely manner, and we know that it is not the only pool that we have
concerns with, and we're hoping that the Department can move forward and address
the needed concerns at those respective facilities throughout the County. Thank
you
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried. Bill No. 15 passes second and final reading.
Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 16 (2006)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1906 (1990), AS
AMENDED, TO EXTEND A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO ALLOW THE OPERATION OF
A GIFT SHOP AND RESTAURANT AT THE MAUI COMMUNITY ARTS & CULTURAL
CENTER ON PROPERTY SITUATED AT KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT BILL NO. 16 PASS SECOND AND FINAL READING.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE TAVARES:
Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Ms. Tavares, to pass Bill
No. 16 on second and final reading. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
This bill proposes to amend Ordinance No. 1906, as amended by Ordinance
Nos. 2464 and 2892, granting an extension of a Conditional Permit to Maui
Community Arts & Cultural Center to allow the operation of a gift shop and restaurant
until May 31, 2012, on property situated at Kahului, Maui, Hawaii.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Bill No. 16 passes second and final reading. Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 17 (2006)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
CHAPTER 12.40, MAUI COUNTY CODE, TO NAME
FIELD 1C IN MAKAWAO TO THE JUSTIN COSTA FIELD
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
MOVE FOR BILL NO. 17 TO BE APPROVED ON SECOND AND
FINAL READING.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Johnson, seconded by Ms. Tavares, to pass
Bill No. 17 on second and final reading. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
We have taken the first reading on this bill, and the contributions of Mr. Justin Costa
have been recognized. And it was appropriate for this Field 1C in Makawao to be
named after him for his contributions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried. Bill No. 17 passes second and final reading.
Mr. Clerk.
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ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 18 (2006)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.38.040,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE DUTIES OF THE
COMMISSION ON NAMING STREETS, PARKS, AND FACILITIES
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
MOVE FOR THE PASSAGE OF BILL NO. 18 ON SECOND AND
FINAL READING.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Johnson, seconded by Ms. Tavares, to pass
Bill No. 18 on second and final reading. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
This was a housekeeping measure that just related to the consistency in the Code
with regard to the duties of the people who are on the Commission on Naming
Streets, Parks, and Facilities. And it is just so that they also realize they can, in
addition to naming a facility, they may also consider the placement of a plaque with
the names of many people that have contributed to various sports or events for those
particular facilities.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried. Bill No. 18 passes second and final reading.
Mr. Clerk.
The following matters listed under "Unfinished Business" were presented.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
COMMITTEE REPORT
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-41

- PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO. 06-35 , entitled "AUTHORIZING MAUI ELECTRIC
COMPANY, LIMITED TO INSTALL TWO UTILITY POLES ON AINAKULA
ROAD, KULA, MAUI", be ADOPTED; and

2.

That County Communication No. 06-60, from the Director of Public Works and
Environmental Management, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-41 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina, to adopt
Committee Report 06-41. Mr. Pontanilla,
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
Committee Report No. 06-41 details Committee review of a resolution enabling the
installation of two 45-foot utility poles within the County right-of-way along Ainakula
Road in Kula. The installation of the two wooden poles will facilitate replacement of
an existing pole and provision of a complete circuit loop required to accommodate
subdivision request for underground utilities.
At the previous Council meeting, consideration of this report was deferred while the
Department was asked to respond to questions regarding communi--community
notification when facilities are installed in public right, right-of-ways.
A communication with response from the Director, dated April 5, 2006, has been
transmitted for Members' review. Review concludes that customary practice was
allowed in this matter and would not warrant isolating this single seven-lot subdivision
to impose newly expected standards.
The Director's communication, however, does generate concerns regarding authority,
notification, and other procedural issues which the Committee will address when it
meets on item PW-57, relating to utility poles replacement in the near future.
Your Committee recommends adoption of the resolution contained in this committee
report and the filing of the County Communication.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion before you, Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. We have received communications, and I know that
the Public Works Director is not here. I still have concerns about this particular issue
because Mr. Hills, he communicated to me, and I'm sorry I didn't have it for
transmission. I received the communication late last evening in regard to the
installation of these poles. There still are concerns.
And while I recognize that it, it really is important for the people to be able to move
into their own homes, I think that this, at this point in time, this should be addressed
because I believe people do have an opportunity to comment.
And the question with regard to the trees--and I see Mr. Arakawa is here--is, is still
one of my issues that I would like information on if possible.
CHAIR HOKAMA: State, state your question to the Director.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
Mr. Director, during the testimony on the part of the individuals from the public, I
asked a question with regard to the trees and their proximity to the overhead lines
and any possible interaction at some point in time. Could you address that issue?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Councilmember Johnson, I, I believe the, the trees that you are talking about are on
the interior subdivision roads where there are already underground utilities, so there
would be no conflict with the overhead lines.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I just wanted to verify that for the record.
And, Mr. Chair, because of the wider issue and not feeling, in my mind, that this is
completely resolved to the satisfaction of people on either side of the issue, I'm going
to be voting no on this measure.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion before you? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would like to ask the Public Works Director a question,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Has Ainakula Road been dedicated to the County yet?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: I'm not certain
about the specific paperwork, but we--it is considered a County road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, considered by who?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: By our
Department. I, I, if you like, I can go check the exact ownership documents; but, I, I
don't have that in front of me. I know we consider it a County road.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, because we're being told by landowners, Mr. Hills,
who had come to our last meeting, that MECo had to ask to get permission from
them in order to install a pole on Ainakula Road. So now he's wondering why they
can just trespass and put up poles adjacent to his property that he is not in
concurrence with.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: Well, the
request that you have before you is to install, you know, remove one pole and to
install two poles within the County right-of-way, So 1, I'm not certain what Mr. Hills'
concern is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, I'm very happy to hear our Public Works
Chair is going to be taking the broader issue up about placement of utility poles and
under grounding.
The, I think that while we would like to see a lot of these areas go underground with
their utilities, to piecemeal it doesn't make any sense. And if you're going to be up
and down, throughout, you know, like along this roadway, it would be much better if
it's, it's one coordinated effort to do, to do this, rather than to put it into this one
section and not have it in the others.
I can understand the concerns. It has been a concern of mine throughout that I
would like to see us move toward under grounding all utilities, not just for the view
planes, but for safety and for withstanding the forces of the nature in some, in some
other instances.
So we need to take all of those kinds of things in, into consideration as we look at this
issue, but it's not something that I think should be discussed here. I'm happy to hear
that Mr. Pontanilla is going to take it up in his Committee. Though I'm not a member
of the Committee, I will attend when he has that scheduled.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
The last time we discussed this, I asked the question if MECo and the Department
could work with the landowners who had a problem with this, to see if they couldn't
move the poles two feet to the left, three feet to the right, you know, just to
communicate with them to see if you couldn't find a suitable way to place these poles
so that they're okay with it. And, and we're not going to be, you know, giving
advantage to some land, landowners who are going to get underground utilities and
then mar the view or the placement of the, of the poles to existing landowners.
Do you know, Mr. Arakawa, if there was any attempt made to do that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Councilmember Anderson, the actual placement of the poles, of course, we have
some issues re--regarding the placement because of obstructions within the
right-of-way. Obviously, we don't want it too close to the travel lane, so we work with
Maui Electric on the exact location of the, the poles.
Now, given that, I did take a look at the particular site. And as, as you know, there
are overhead lines which feed the properties along this stretch of Ainakula Road.
And, basically, I, I looked at Mr. Hills' property. His house is set back, and he also
has an overhead line which feeds from that overhead pole overhead to his house.
So, and it's same--the same with other properties along this road where there is
overhead lines, and they are all being fed through those overhead lines.
So I appreciate the Public Works Committee, for instance, to take look at how this
thing could be looked at comprehensively. But in terms of one pole, 1 mean whether
or not it gets moved two feet or three feet to the left or right, it would still be a--it still
could be viewed within the horizon of, you know, Mr. Hills' house. Although it's, it is
not right in front of his bedroom, but it will be a view object whether or not it's two or
three feet, you know, moving to the left or the right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But you didn't contact them to see if there was some
way you could work out a-DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No, we did
not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --an agreeable situation?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion, Members, on the motion before you? The motion is to adopt
Committee Report 06-41. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS KANE, MATEO, MOLINA,
PONTANILLA,
TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR
CARROLL, AND CHAIR HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON AND JOHNSON.

CHAIR HOKAMA: We have two "noes", Ms. Johnson and Ms. Anderson; we have seven
"ayes". Committee report is adopted. Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION 06-35.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

COUNTY COMMUNICATION
NO. 06-79

LLOYD Y. GINOZA, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated March 10, 2006)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2006 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
THE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN CONCERNS".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I yield the floor to Member Mateo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much.
I MOVE TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT OF COMMITTEE
REFERRAL AND RECOMMENDATION FOR THE PROPOSED
BILL TRANSMITTED BY COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-79,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5(H) OF THE RULES OF THE
COUNCIL.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to waive
the requirement of referral and Committee recommendation.
Okay, Members, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA, TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
CHAIRMAN, I MOVE THAT THE PROPOSED BILL ATTACHED
TO COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-79, ENTITLED "A BILL
FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2006
BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN CONCERNS" BE
PASSED ON FIRST READING, ORDERED TO PRINT, AS WELL
AS THE FILING OF THIS COMMUNICATION.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Mateo, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, to move
that the proposed bill attached to County Communication 06-79 pass first reading
and be ordered to print. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, the purpose of the proposed bill is to delete the
proviso in Section 3.B.5 of the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget under the Affordable
Housing Program, which states, "that legislation shall be enacted prior to the
implementation of the Affordable Rental Housing Program." A budget amendment
will enable the Department of Housing and Human Concerns to release funds which
would enable nonprofit organizations to provide rental assistance that would
otherwise lapse on June 30, 2006. Passing legislation prior to the disbursement of
the funds is not possible this late in the fiscal year.
With the challenging schedule of the Housing and Human Services Committee,
Chairman, we were just not able to address this matter. And we all know too well the
pressing need to provide the rental assistance to our residents.
The question asked this morning of us, Chairman, "Where are we?" It is not only our
words that will answer this question, but our actions speaks louder. We, we're at the
verge of being able to make a difference in helping our peoples in, in their need for
rental assistance.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion before you? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll be supporting the measure. I think that while in an
ideal world we should have these issues covered, I think that the expenditure of the
funds is really critical at this point, and particularly for some of the individuals who
have been living in their cars, living in places where they should not be living or no
human being should have to live, and not being able to get into housing.
I think that before when we had the September 11 crisis and there was a fund
established for assistance, while it wasn't specific to rentals, I know that some of the
individuals who were impacted where they had assistance with their utility bills or
other things were able to actually stay in their homes when we had that crisis.
While I'm not certain who would be granted the money, it could be Maui Economic
Opportunity, it could be another entity, perhaps even Lokahi, I think that is not as
important for me as knowing that those individuals in the community who need the
help would at least have this as one more avenue while we're addressing the larger
concern and formulating policy.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2006
Page 97

So I think that while it's not ideal, I definitely support the need for moving forward with
this measure.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Further discussion on the motion before you, Members? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think Mr. Mateo, as the Chair of the Housing and Human--Human Services
Committee, brings forward a, a request that has merit. And, and I say that because
given the challenge that he was charged with as the Chair of your Committee and, as
we saw today, his successes of moving forward with those charges, including the
First-Time Homebuyer Fund, which we acted on earlier on 06-51 Committee Report,
as well as 06-52 Committee Report, the, the movement of the Residential Workforce
Housing Policy, it, it's just unfortunate we had all these things all at the same time.
And so we had to, we had to make decisions.
The, the main concern that I would have on the motion on the floor, and, and I
mentioned to the Chair earlier, it's unfortunate that our process forces it into a yes/no
situation; and that it inherently pits one concept with another as far as how we can
respond to this issue. This one in particular with, with respects to the rental fund.
The concern is primarily, and maybe we can address that concern by making sure
that if this is going to go through with the deletion, that we follow through with the
intent in the first place with the enabling legislation; and that is that we make sure we
understand how the money is going to be spent specifically via reporting.
Now, because we were unable to formulate a process by which this money would be
dis--dispersed into the community, and there's no dispute because we all supported it
unanimously last year, that this was a definite need. And it's there again in our
budget this year because, again, we continue to recognize not only as a Council, but
as an Administration, the need.
So I would only say that the concern rest with, at this point, we don't have anything to
come back around and support the, the original intent; and that is to have provide
some sort of reporting mechanism attached to this. And so because, you know,
we're trying to get this movement going so we can provide, I would ask for assistance
if, if you will, Mr. Chair, in trying to formulate some level of or, or some type of
mechanism, reporting mechanism that would give this body a, a, a handle on how
that money, the $400,000 is going to be utilized because right now there is no current
mechanism that provides for that with this request.
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Those are my comments, Mr. Chair. With that, I will move forward and support this.
It will be with reservations. And unless we can do something, and I don't know if
Corporation Counsel can help us, or I don't know if the question is appropriate, can
there be something done to incorporate a, a, a reporting mechanism after the fact of
the vote today? If not, then I would ask, you know, that we entertain a, a, an action
that would allow us to do so, to provide for a reporting mechanism.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, I am well aware of where we are in time and, and, and in the, where we
are in the agenda. I believe we can complete the day's work be--without taking a, a
break.
But hearing the comments, as well as this is a very unusual process in which you all
know I don't, I get my uncomfortableness by not having the Committee's reports and
the Committee deliberations, I am going to call for a very short recess, Members, to
see if we can at least find a way to get comment back from the appropriate
department on how the monies is, is to be utilized, or what is the achievements or
what, what they have been able to provide with the funding.
So I think we can do this very quickly, Members. We will be in recess till twelve
twenty-five.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 12:20 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 12:30 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, we are currently with a motion before you which is to pass on
first reading, be ordered to print, a bill for an ordinance that would amend the Fiscal
Year 2006 Budget that is attached to County Communication 06-79.
The Chair will recom--make a recommendation to you that should you feel to support
the motion, then the Chair would also recommend to you that the matter regarding
the implementation of the Affordable Rental Housing Program be referred to the
Council's Housing and Human Concerns Committee where Mr. Mateo, as our
standing committee chair, will take up the concerns that has been brought up today
regarding how the monies will be utilized and then, of course, hopefully, we'll get
some recommendations on how to proceed with the 2007 budget consideration. So
that is your Chairman's recommendation and suggestion as we try and work through
what is before you, the Council, at this time. Questions to the Chair regarding his
recommendation?
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If not, are there further discussion, Members? With no discussion, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried, and the matter will be referred regarding the
implementation to Mr. Mateo's Housing and Human Concerns Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Members.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we still have remaining the two items that were deferred
to the end of the calendar. Shall we bring up those two items?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.

DEFERRED COMMITTEE REPORT
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-56

- PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO. 06-36 entitled "ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
ROADWAY LOTS FOR THE MAUNALOA VILLAGE SUBDIVISION,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUI COUNTY CODE", be ADOPTED;
and

2.

That County Communication No. 06-71, from the Director of Public Works and
Environmental Management, be FILED.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, if the Chair recalls correctly, the Clerk has brought back Committee
Report 06-56. The Chair's recollection is that there is a motion to adopt this
committee report, and that is the current status of the item before you.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair. I guess the question posed was to the Director to let
us know when the, the initiation from the applicant was made to have those roads
dedicated to the County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Director, do you have a response for the Council this morning?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: Yes,
Mr. Chair.
In checking with our staff, the initial request for roadway dedication for the Maunaloa
Village Subdivision was submitted to us in 1997.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, Mr. Chair, thank you.
And that, to me, feels, in my mind, a link that was missing within, within our
discussion which now shows that Administration, for whatever reasons, and we don't
know because it never got to us until, you know, the communication this year on the
request.
And if it is to standard, we automatically have to. But, in this case, there is the
exception, I guess, that we don't have to because it's not current compliance. Is that
correct? I mean, that's what's before us. Is that correct? Because by law, we're
supposed to accept something that's within standard. I mean, we're required to
accept a road if it's asked for dedication and it's to County standard. We can't turn it
down if that was a requirement. Is that correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Moto, as Corporation Counsel for the County, do you have a
response to Mr. Kane's question?
Director Arakawa, do you have a comment as Mr. Moto reviews the Code?
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DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: Mr. Chair, I'm
not aware of any requirement where the Council would be required to accept
dedication of it's to standard. I, I believe it, it would, would--dedication would require
Council action, but it's based on just the discretion of the Councilors themselves.
That's my understanding, unless Mr. Moto can show me otherwise, but that's my
understanding of how we, we would operate. But, generally, all of our request that
come to the Council, we try to have it be done to standard first. This, however, is an
exception.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe you can help us then, Mr. Director. When it regards to
easements and right-of-ways, that, we are required regardless to accept if offered to
the County?
There were certain things that I can recall regarding the roadway, that we have pretty
much, which is interesting, we were asked to accept, yet we have no decision but to
accept, as well as my understanding regarding State jurisdiction if the State wishes to
dedicate to the County, it's almost difficult for the County not to receive it.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: Mr. Chair, I
recall having this discussion some years ago, and my recollection is that the issue
pertained to road widening lots and whether or not the Council was required to
accept the dedication of those road widening lots. And I believe the discussion, at
that time, was that the Council had to accept it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Road widening lots?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: Lots, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And it was viewed in that narrow parameter, Mr. Director?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: That's my
understanding, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Moto, do you--are you able to offer us any comments, please?
CORPORATION COUNSEL BRIAN MOTO: No, Mr. Chairman, not at this time. I'm--I've
been advised and reminded that there is a State statute that may apply to this. So I'd
like an opportunity to review that first.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chair, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: One second. Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I apologize for holding up-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, no. I think.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --our progress in this afternoon's meeting.
The point that I made earlier has been responded to adequately, and I'm willing to
move forward. And the question I have may be, I don't know what the big words is,
but it may not, you know, be a relevant issue that's going to make me change any
type of a position I take. The main one was when was the dedication initiated by the
applicant, and that has been responded to.
And, so, the responsibility and the accountability of the holdup of it taking eight or
nine years to get to us rest with the administrative branch, not this Administration or
any previous, but the administrative branch in bringing it forward to the Council in
their duties.
So I'm ready to move forward, Mr. Chair, and I don't want to, you know, hold up
anybody else from being ready to, to vote on their, on their position.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank you, Chair.
I'm sorry Mr. Arakawa doesn't have his file with him. But initiating something isn't the
same as completing all the required information in order for it to go forward. So I'm
wondering if Mr. Arakawa can give us some indication as to why it took from 1997
until nine years later, really, for what was initiated in '97 to finally come forward; if
perhaps the landowner had not completed all the necessary requirements in order for
his department to process the request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, can you provide comment? We are aware this is two
Administrations ago, two Mayors ago, at least two directors of the Department ago,
so do you have something you can comment on this afternoon?
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DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
From what we can glean from the files, what had occurred in '97 was that the request
for roadway dedication was submitted to our Department, and that, that was the
initiation of the dedication process.
Also around that time, Molokai Ranch also submitted a request for park dedication for
Maunaloa Park. And the processing of the dedication documents were not handled
by our Department, and there were a, there was a stretch of several years where, at
least from our standpoint, we weren't aware of what went on as far as the process of
dedication.
We became aware of this dedication issue recently within the past couple years from
Molokai Ranch indicating that they had wanted to pursue the roadway dedication
process separate from the park dedication process. And that's when we got into the
discussion about doing the punch list and what, feeling out the other outstanding
issues that may be needed to be done prior to the dedication of the roadways being
brought to the Council.
In the meantime, we did, because of the long time frame, we did present it to the, the
Council for a decision, that was the decision of the committee, the Public Works
Committee.
As far as I'm aware, the park dedication issue is still outstanding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm not sure that you answered my question,
Mr. Arakawa.
When they submitted their request, when they initiated their request for dedication,
did they submit all the necessary information and was everything up to County
standards so that you could have proceeded with the, the dedication at that time, or
was there a lapse of time? I mean oftentimes people submit things to the County and
then you have to go back to them and ask for more information. Was that the case,
or was everything in place in '97?
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: I don't believe
everything was in place. They initiated the dedication process in '97. And as I
mentioned, it was tied to a park dedication issue as well. And what happened or
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what transpired in the ensuing years is something we, we don't have in our files, so I,
I, I can't answer your question fully.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, Mr. Chair, I find it really difficult to be
accepting roadways that is going to cost the taxpayer, from a private developer, that's
going to cost our taxpayers close to a million dollars to bring it up to ADA compliance.
And, you know, I do know that--the County Code says that, that we're not obligated
to, in, in my reading, that we're not obligated to accept a private roadway.
And, as he said, nothing in their final plat said that these streets would be dedicated
to the County. So I'm really confused.
I'd rather see us put that $800,000 towards first-time home buyers or the rental
assistance program rather than put a greater ADA compliance obligation on the
County.
And then the only other thing I have to, to add to that is we're again prohibited from
accepting roadways that are not to County standards. But where in our County Code
does it include ADA requirements as a County standard? I mean I know we have to
do it under Federal law, and we're being forced to do it now under a Consent Decree.
But I don't know that we've ever made any changes to the County Code that
addresses ADA standards as being a County standard. I don't see it anywhere in
Title 18.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe you are correct. We haven't made much amendments or
revisions to almost every chapter of the Code. So I, I would, without checking, I
would, I can assume that you're pretty accurate on that comment, Ms. Anderson.
And, again, Members, looks like Mr. Moto still needs time. We can either defer this to
the next Council meeting or make a decision either way this afternoon. And, again, if
it was in '97, it was possibly part of a condition of zoning or part of the Maunaloa
development. I am not sure. Remember, under Chairman Kawano's days, there was
talk about a community center; there was other improvements going on. Some
things did happen; some things didn't happen. So I am not sure exactly how we
came to this specific point in time, Members, that I can recall.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
My final point, and it's related to Member Anderson's line of questioning. The
conclusion that I drew based on the question was the submittal was in '97, according
to the one, two, three, four, five, sixth paragraph specifically states that: "The
Director reviewed the history of this project, from final subdivision approval on
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February 13, 1995 through the present. He stated that all the improvements within
the jurisdiction of the Department were satisfactorily completed and approved on
January 2, 1998,"
Now, based on that, I am, I am looking at it as we're talking about a road dedication
which is within the jurisdiction of this Department. We're not talking about the parks
that were something else that was attached. Now why the Department chose to put it
all together and failed to submit to us the, the request made by the applicant in '97, is
why I made my comment that I hold the, the, an Administration accountable for that,
not the applicant. Because they did, according to these comments here, and we hold
the Director accountable for his statements, according to this committee report.
Submittal in 1997; everything completed to satisfactory in '98. So now from '98 to
present, the hold up was in the Department, not with the applicant.
So I'm willing to move forward with the committee report's recommendation,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Further discussion on the motion before you, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you very much.
And I was referring to the same paragraph that Mr. Kane was referring to, that's the
question that, I mean, why I asked the question earlier of Mr. Arakawa about had the
roadway been accepted in a reasonable amount of time, who would have to pay for
these ADA requirements. And it is the County. As we talked about, or I mentioned,
you see it all over the County happening now. This is not an $800,000 that could be
spent somewhere else because a private developer is responsible for paying for this.
I think it's our responsibility, whatever the reason was for, you know, it fell off
somebody desk into a rubbish can; whatever the reason is that it was delayed, the
time and the good faith of the developer to submit the documents, it was deemed to
be completed. Now it's, you know, they shouldn't be penalized because we took
eight years.
So that that's my point is that this is not, this is money that's being expended now,
millions and millions of dollars across the County to comply with ADA standards. And
this would have been spent because it would have been a County road had it been
processed in the usual procedure. As they're saying, this is an exception to what
usually occurs in the Public Works Department.
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So for those, for that reason, Mr. Chair, I do support this. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Okay, Members. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just have one final question, and that is if--and this would
be to Mr. Arakawa--if the road remained in private hands, would the requirements for
ADA compliance still be required or needed?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Councilmember Johnson, my understanding is that the, theD ramps would not be
required to be changed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is frustrating because, you know, by accepting it,
we're incurring an $800,000 minimum expense which would otherwise not have to be
done. And I use the example of some other roads, Hui F, which is still with the
second, Clerk of the Second Circuit Court. There's many roads that are in situations
where it's in limbo. And I appreciate it. I want compliance wherever we can, but I
don't know. I just have a problem with this in general, not specifically with this
particular road. But if we do it in one situation, how many others are out there that
are now going to come back to us and say, "Well, you did it for this one, and we
made a request way back when." So, anyway, I don't know. I don't even know
where this should go right now because I'm conflicted at this point in time, Mr. Chair,
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to the Department themselves,
you know, this thing has been lingering on since 1997-98 time frame. And I gotta
commend the Department for bringing this forward to have this road dedicated.
I, I, I think it's our responsibility, not the Council, but the County to be more
responsive in re--in regards to accepting dedication on a timely basis. How can we
fault a developer for something that has been lingering on for eight-nine years now?

So I'm ready to move forward, waiting for your call in, in this regards for this one
particular subdivision.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
Further discussion? You do have the motion before you. Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are we going to get a response from Mr. Moto?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Moto, are you able to give us a verbal comment this afternoon?
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
And my comment is going to be focused on the technical question about the
ownership of roads and, and dedication of them. And looking briefly at the annotated
statutes, I, I think it's fairly clear that under the common law of the State, a, a private
roadway can be surrendered and put to public use. However, it does not become a
County highway unless and until it is accepted by the legislative body. Now, that's
under the case laws decided by the courts of the State.
The Hawaii Revised Statutes, in a section dealing with highways, in particular,
Section 264-1, says that where a road, and I'm summarizing the statute here, where
a road is constructed and completed as required by an ordinance of a County, of the
County, then the legislative body shall accept the dedication without exercise of
discretion. Now, of course, imbedded in that statement is a, a basic premise, which
is that the road is constructed and completed according to County requirements.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Moto.
Members, you have heard the verbal comments of Mr. Moto regarding the question.
Are you ready for the question to be posed by the Chair?
All in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Thank you very much, Members. Thank you, Mr. Moto, for your comment.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION 06-36.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, continuing with the items that were deferred to the end of
calendar, we have the condolent resolution. Shall I bring the resolution forward?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Before the Chair have, has, have you bring up the reso, final resolution
regarding the condolences to the Inouye family, the Chair's intention, Members, is to
end with a moment of silence at the end of this resolution.
Therefore, with your approval and no objections, the Chair will take announcements
at this time. So why don't we start from one end and work our way down.
Ms. Tavares, you have any announcements?

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Members of the Council offered various announcements.

DEFERRED CEREMONIAL RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION
NO. 05-36
EXTENDING CONDOLENCES TO
THE FAMILY OF THE LATE
MARGARET "MAGGIE" AWAMURA INOUYE
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I WOULD MOVE TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt the
resolution. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I would like to ask the Clerk to read the resolution in its entirety.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Clerk.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I, like many others, had the opportunity to talk with her over the years. She was
somebody that was humble, quiet, yet straightforward.
This resolution is rather short, and I think that's how she would have wanted it
because that's how she was.
We miss her terribly, all of those that know, known her over the years, and I'm sure
her family misses her the most, including her husband. But I feel that she still lives in
what she's left behind in all the hearts of all those that have known her.
And, again, our condolences to the family. But I can't help but having some joy in
knowing that she touched so many, touched so many lives.
And, of course, I support the resolution. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, any further comments on the resolution before you? If not, all in favor of
the resolution please say "aye."
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AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried
We shall have a moment of silence and then we shall adjourn today's meeting,
Members.
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL, AND OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE,
OBSERVED A MOMENT OF SILENCE IN MEMORY OF THE
LATE MARGARET "MAGGIE" AWAMURA INOUYE.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, the regular meeting of 7 April 2006 of the Council of the
County of Maui is hereby adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business before the Council, the regular meeting of April 7, 2006,
was adjourned by the Chair at 1:07 p.m.
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